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I. Fiscal Period Report

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

1 Summary of Selected Financial Data

12th FP 13th FP 14th FP 15th FP 16th FP

Fiscal Period units From: Feb. 1,2016 From: Aug. 1, 2016 From: Feb. 1,2017 From: Aug. 1, 2017 From: Feb. 1,2018

To: Jul. 31,2016 To: Jan. 31,2017 To: Jul. 31,2017 To: Jan. 31,2018 To: Jul. 31,2018
Operating | Operating revenues million yen 15,444 15,504 15,918 15,903 16,302
results (Rental revenue) a million yen 15,444 15,504 15,918 15,903 16,167
(Gain on real estate sales) b million yen - - - - 135
Total operating expenses million yen 7,716 7,702 7,949 7,883 8,030
(Rental business expenses) C million yen 6,092 6,045 6,275 6,176 6,345
(Loss on real estate sales) d million yen 3 - - - -
(Impairment loss) e million yen - - - - -
Operating income million yen 7,727 7,801 7,968 8,019 8,272
Ordinary income f million yen 6,206 6,371 6,642 6,798 7,088
Net income g million yen 6,205 6,371 6,642 6,798 7,087
Balance Total assets h million yen 448,160 450,967 450,479 448,421 452,846
sheet figures | |nterest-bearing liabilities i million yen 233,864 223,774 223,374 221,418 225,918
Net assets j million yen 207,915 220,834 220,754 220,574 220,524
Paid-in Capital k million yen 114,936 127,690 127,690 127,690 127,690
Per unit Total dividends | million yen 6,206 6,721 6,978 7,134 7,423
figures Payout ratio Ilg % 100.0 105.5 105.1 105.0 104.7
Total number of units issued and outstanding m Units 1,300,000 1,350,000 1,350,000 1,350,000 1,350,000

Net assets per unit jim yen 159,935 163,580 163,521 163,388 163,351
Net income per unit Note2 yen 4,773 4,771 4,920 5,035 5,250
Dividend per unit I/m yen 4774 4,979 5,169 5,285 5,499
Dividend from earnings per unit yen 4,774 4,979 5,169 5,285 5,499
Dividend in excess of earnings per unit yen 0 0 0 0 0
Annualized dividend yield Note3 % 3.4 3.3 3.9 3.7 3.8
Financial Return on investment (Paid-in Capital)  (g+q)/(k+i) M3 % 5.1 5.1 53 5.4 5.6
indicators Return on investment (market capitalization) (g+q)/(mxr+i) Mot % 29 2.8 3.2 3.1 32
FFO per unit (g-b+d+e+q)im yen 6,752 6,640 6,869 6,999 7,136
Annualized n Note3 yen 13,579 13,209 13,853 13,885 14,392
FFO per unit r/n times 21.0 22.6 19.4 20.2 20.2
Ratio of ordinary income to total assets f/h Note 4 % 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6
Annualized Notes % 2.8 28 3.0 3.0 3.2
Equity ratio jlh % 46.4 49.0 49.0 49.2 48.7
Return on equity gli Notes % 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.1 3.2
Annualized Note3 % 6.0 5.9 6.1 6.1 6.5
Ratio of interest-bearing liabilities to total assets ilh % 52.2 49.6 49.6 49.4 49.9
DSCR o/p times 8.0 8.6 9.5 10.2 10.9
Net income before interest and depreciation o million yen 10,024 10,151 10,367 10,472 10,755
Interest expenses p million yen 1,250 1,186 1,093 1,023 985
NOI a-c+q Note | million yen 11,920 12,052 12,274 12,377 12,504
Annualized NOI yield Note3,7 % 5.6 5.5 5.6 5.6 5.7
Depreciation and amortization q Noted | million yen 2,568 2,593 2,631 2,651 2,682
Reference | Number of properties under management - 255 257 260 261 261,263
information | Number of leasable units at end of period Units 20,455 20,565 20,842 20,888 21,246
Leasable floor area at end of period Noteg m? 766,881.60 773,464.74 781,760.64 783,781.16 789,430.47
Occupancy rate at end of period Note 1o % 96.6 96.6 96.9 97.2 96.9
Unit price at end of period r yen 284,600 297,900 269,400 280,000 290,900

Notes 1. Figures for Operating results do not include consumption tax. Amounts are rounded down to the nearest specified unit. Percentage figures are rounded to the first decimal place.
The same applies hereafter.
2. The netincome per unit is calculated by dividing net income by the daily weighted average number of units issued and outstanding.
. The annualized figures are calculated using periods of 182 days for the 12th FP, 184 days for the 13th FP, 181 days for the 14th FP, 184 days for the 15th FP and 181 days for the 16th
FP.
. Ratio of ordinary income to total assets = Ordinary income + {(Total assets at beginning of period + Total assets at end of period) + 2} x 100
. Return on equity = Net income + {(Net assets at beginning of period + Net assets at end of period) + 2} x 100
In the calculation of NOI, the depreciation and amortization is limited to what is included in rental business expenses.
. Annualized NOI yield = Total annualized NOI + Total property acquisition price
(The annualized NOI yield is calculated by taking into account the actual number of days of operation for each property.)
. Depreciation and amortization include amortization of intangible assets in addition to depreciation of property, plant and equipment.
9. “Leasable floor area at end of period” refers to the leasable floor area for each building as stated on the lease agreement or indicated on its official floor plan. The leasable floor
area of land such as parking lots is not included.
10. “Occupancy rate at end of period” is calculated by using the formula: “Leased floor area” + “Leasable floor area” x 100.
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2 Investment Environment and Operating Performance

With the aim of realizing a stable distribution of earnings over the long term, we carried out the following initiatives during
the 16th FP.

1. Internal Growth
During the fiscal period, which was a peak leasing period "¢, ADR was able to maintain high occupancy while accelerating
the rise in rent levels in tenant replacements, continue to raise rents on renewals, and carry out value enhancement works
to heighten the competitive advantages of ADR’s properties.

2. External Growth
ADR acquired a total of four properties (total acquisition price of 6.7 billion yen), consisting of two recently constructed
properties from the sponsor pipeline and two properties from third parties through negotiated transaction. Also, with the
aim of improving the quality and profitability of ADR’s portfolio, ADR sold two properties with low profitability and volatile
revenue profiles.

3. Finance
By taking advantage of the low interest rate environment, ADR was able to simultaneously extend the average remaining
duration of interest-bearing liabilities while reducing its average interest rate.

Notes 1. InJapan, the months of February to April is a busy season for leasing, during which time a relatively high number of lease contracts are normally concluded. In this report we call the
fiscal periods that include the busy season the peak leasing periods and other fiscal periods as off-season periods. Therefore, at ADR the fiscal periods ending January 31 are off-season
periods and fiscal periods ending July 31 are peak leasing periods.

By executing these initiatives, we were able to attain the following fiscal period results.

(million yen)
ltem Previous FP Initial forecast Mot 16th FP Results

Results (July 2018) Difference from the previous FP | - Difference from the inial forecast
Operating revenues 15,903 16,162 16,302 +398 +139
Operating income 8,019 8,032 8,272 +252 +239
Ordinary income 6,798 6,818 7,088 +289 +270
Net income 6,798 6,817 7,087 +289 +270
Earnings Per Unit Note3 5,035 yen 5,050 yen 5,250 yen +215yen +200 yen
Dividend Per Unit 5,285 yen 5,299 yen 5,499 yen +214 yen +200 yen

Notes 2. The initial forecast refers to the earnings forecasts for the 16th FP disclosed in the “Brief Summary of Kessan Tanshin” for the 15th FP, dated March 12, 2018. The same applies
hereafter.
3. Calculated by dividing net income by the total number of units issued and outstanding as of the end of the fiscal period. Decimals are omitted from the EPU figures. The same
applies hereafter.

Earnings per unit (EPU) set a new record high of 5,250 yen, which is 215 yen higher than in the previous fiscal period. ADR
achieved higher revenues and profits due to peak leasing season increases in key money, gains on sales of two properties,
and a decrease in interest payments compared to the previous period. On the other hand, when compared to the initial
forecast, ADR achieved higher revenues and profits due to higher-than-expected occupancy rates which resulted in higher
rental revenue and lower leasing expenses to attract new tenants.

The dividend per unit (DPU), including the 248 yen per unit drawdown in reserve for temporary difference adjustment (RTA),
amounted to 5,499 yen, which is 200 yen higher than the initial forecast and 214 yen higher than in the previous fiscal period.

1. Internal Growth

- Maintained high occupancy rates while increasing rents —

While population inflow continues in regions where ADR invests, the market for rental apartments remains tight since the
number of rental housing starts remains limited. Accordingly, we achieved an average period occupancy rate of 97.0% which
is a record high on par with that achieved in the previous fiscal period.

With such high occupancy rates and our efforts to actively raise rents upon tenant replacement, as well as at the time of
contract renewal, the rent rise for residential units that had tenants replaced was at an all-time high of 2.18%. As a result, we
increased the overall portfolio rent level ¢4 for an 8th consecutive fiscal period, achieving a 0.29% gain over rent levels of
January 31, 2018.

Notes 4. Change in average per-unit rent between the start and end of the fiscal period, for all properties held for the entire fiscal period. The same applies hereafter.
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I. Fiscal Period Report

- Strengthening competitiveness of our properties by carrying out value enhancement work —

ADR conducts large-scale repairs of its properties on a scheduled basis in order to maintain functionality and freshen-up their
appearance. In addition, ADR carries out value enhancement work on individual units, especially units of properties that
have recently been subjected to large-scale repairs, to maintain and enhance competitiveness in the leasing market. Value
enhancement works are implemented at the time when tenants are being replaced, and entail equipment upgrades and floor
plan changes.

During the fiscal period, we executed large-scale repairs on 5 properties and value enhancement works on 39 residential
units. We were able to increase the number of units of which we can implement the value enhancement work by aggressively
seeking units where rent rise was more likely to be expected if the works were implemented, by taking measures to reduce
costs by reusing as much as possible of existing fittings and fixtures to increase the expected return on investment and
because it was a peak leasing period. Of the residential units that underwent the value enhancement works, new rental
contracts had been signed for 24 units as of August 31, 2018. Those units saw robust increases in rent of 20% on average
in comparison with rents under previous contracts. Going forward, ADR will endeavor to further enhance the competitive
strengths of its properties through such measures.

- Sustainability measures -

ADR works together with the asset management company on contributing to realize a sustainable society and to increase
its unit-holder value. To that end, the asset management company has set up a sustainability committee to systematically
tackle each of the ESG (environmental, social and governance) sustainability goals. More specifically, ADR has been replacing
equipment with environmentally friendly ones at its properties, contributing to local communities by raising disaster-
prevention awareness among its tenants, introducing job training programs to employees of the asset management
company, and promoting many other sustainability measures.

International assessment institutions have evaluated ADR on the measures regarding sustainability it has taken, as follows:

¢ ADR received the “Green Star” rating in 2017 from GRESB, the Global Real Estate Sustainability Benchmark which was
developed mainly by European pension funds to evaluate the ESG performance of real estate companies and funds and
which ADR has continually participated in its survey since 2014.

¢ We decided to acquire a corporate social responsibility (CSR) rating by Robeco SAM, a first for aresidential J-REIT during the
fiscal period. By acquiring the rating ADR will be evaluated to see if it is eligible for inclusion in the Dow Jones Sustainability
Index which uses the RobecoSAM’s ratings to evaluate the eligibility.

¢ ADR has received an ESG rating of BB from MSCI, an investment information provider that serves institutional investors.
Although in 2017 ADR became the one and only residential J-REIT to be included as a constituent in the MSCI JAPAN ESG
Select Leaders Index, which targets companies that exhibit a high ESG profile, it was excluded from the index upon a
rebalancing in 2018. As such, we are focusing our efforts on promptly regaining inclusion in the index.

2. External Growth

— Steadily acquiring prime properties —

During the current fiscal period, despite the challenging acquisition environment, ADR has been able to acquire prime
properties that are expected to generate stable rent revenue. ADR has acquired a total of four properties at a total acquisition
price of 6.7 billion yen. This includes two recently constructed properties acquired from the sponsor pipeline, RESIDIA Kamata
V and RESIDIA Kamata IV, and two other properties acquired from third parties through negotiated transaction, RESIDIA
Funabashi IV and RESIDIA Hijiyama Koen (Notes),

RESIDIA Hijiyama Koen is a scarce property located in city center of Hiroshima. It is the first time that ADR invested in
Hiroshima. The property is a rental apartment exclusively for single women where we expect it to attract rental demand

from both working adults and students.

Notes 5. Although the name of the property is CREST Hijiyama as of the end of the fiscal period, it has been renamed as of September 3, 2018. Accordingly, the property is presented in this
document under its new name, irrespective of the name of the property as of the end of the fiscal period.

3. Finance

- Interest rate reduction and extension of remaining debt duration -

Under its financing policy of extending remaining duration, fixing interest rates and diversifying maturities of interest-bearing
liabilities, ADR procured in total 25.6 billion yen (average initial duration of 7.6 years and average interest rate of 0.48% (Note®)
during this fiscal period. With the average remaining duration of debt at 5.0 years and the average interest rate at 0.84% as of
the end of the current fiscal period, we have managed to further strengthen our financial foundations by simultaneously having
extended the remaining average duration and lowered the average interest rate, compared to the previous fiscal period end.

N
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Issuer ratings that have been acquired by ADR as of the end of the current fiscal period (July 31, 2018) are as follows.

Credit rating agency Coverage Rating
Japan Credit Rating Agency, Ltd. (JCR) Long-term issuer rating (OutIO(ﬁfStable)
Rating and Investment Information, Inc. (R&I) Issuer rating (OutlooléJrPositive)

Notes 6. The “average interest rate” is the weighted-average interest rate on loans and bonds as of their respective borrowing or issuance date, as of the end of the current fiscal period
(July 31,2018). If the interest rates on the debts have been converted to fixed interest rates using swap agreements in order to hedge the risk of interest rate volatility, the fixed
rates are used in calculating the average.

3 Management Policies and Challenges Going Forward

By diligently implementing the strategies outlined below, ADR aims to achieve firm and steady EPU growth.

a) Internal Growth

By comprehensively taking into account both the property characteristics and terms of individual contracts, ADR will continue
work to raise rents at the time of tenant replacements, as well as at the time of contract renewals. Furthermore, we will aim
to generate greater profitability from each property by improving leasing income and expenditure which includes actively
securing key money. In addition, we will continue to enhance the competitive advantages of our properties by systematically
conducting timely large-scale renovations, as well as implementing value enhancement work appropriate to the property’s
characteristics.

b) External Growth

Even though market conditions will continue to be difficult for acquiring properties, we will strive to acquire properties that
will contribute in improving the quality and profitability of ADR’s portfolio by minimizing competition through the means of
acquiring them from our sponsor or through third parties in negotiated deals by leveraging on market information supplied
to ADR. Meanwhile, we will continue to seek opportunities arising from the buoyant property market to dispose and replace
properties in order to improve the quality and profitability of ADR’s portfolio.

Between the end of this fiscal period and the fiscal reporting date, ADR acquired RESIDIA Kita-Nijyo-East Il V7 from a third
party by means of negotiated transaction, at an acquisition price of 400 million yen. Located in Sapporo’s city center nearby
Sapporo’s Ekimae-dori and Odori area, the property is expected to generate stable rent revenue given that it is likely to
generate rental demand from single working adults who commute to the city center.

Notes 7. Although the name of the property is Centro Sapporo Kita-Nijyo as of the date of this document, it has been renamed as of October 1, 2018. Accordingly, the property is presented in
this document under its new name, irrespective of the name of the property as of the date of this document.

¢) Finance Policy

While we keep a close eye on interest-rate trends, we will, in our debt financing, continue to further diversify its maturities

while extending its duration and sustaining the high fixed interest ratio, thereby maintaining and strengthening a financial

foundation that is resilient to future market volatility.

d) Dividend Payout Policy
ADR focuses its efforts on generating dividend payments in accordance with its basic management policy, which calls for
“realization of a stable distribution of earnings over the long term.”

Moreover, ADR will continue to draw down the reserves for temporary difference adjustments (RTA), in accordance with
partial amendments of the “Regulations Concerning Accounting of Investment Corporations” and the Investment Trusts
Association of Japan’s “Regulations Concerning Real Estate Investment Trusts and Real Estate Investment Corporations.”
This means that ADR will fully draw down the RTA within 50 years, in equal amounts or more every fiscal period "8, starting
from the fiscal period ended January 2017.

In case the DPU falls below 4,500 yen even with the dividend supplement, the draw down will be increased to ensure a DPU
of at least 4,500 yen (Note9),

Notes 8. The RTA drawdown amount per fiscal period is calculated by dividing by 100, the outstanding amount of the RTA that has been transferred from the reserve for dividends as of the end
of the fiscal period ended January 31, 2017 (50 year x 2 fiscal periods = 100 periods). As of the date of this document, the RTA drawdown amount per fiscal period is approximately 335
million yen. However, ADR may increase the amount of the drawdown indicated above in order to stabilize dividend levels.

9. However, this does not constitute a guarantee of actual amount of dividend payment. The actual amount of dividend payment will need to be decided ultimately by ADR’s Board of

Directors.



I. Fiscal Period Report

4 Equity Finances

The following are changes in paid-in capital and total number of units issued and outstanding over the last 5 years.

Date Rernarks Total number of units issued and outstanding Paid-in Capital (million yen) Notes
Increase Balance Increase Balance
February 3, 2014 Follow-on offering 58,000 1,298,000 11,967 114,524 1
February 26, 2014 Third-party allotment 2,000 1,300,000 412 114,936 2
September 23, 2016 Follow-on offering 47,500 1,347,500 12,115 127,052 3
October 19, 2016 Third-party allotment 2,500 1,350,000 637 127,690 4
1. ADRissued new units through public offering at an offer price of 213,330 yen (paid-in amount: 206,328 yen) per unit to procure funds for new property acquisitions and for other
purposes.

2. ADRissued new units by way of third-party allotment with Mizuho Securities Co., Ltd. as the allottee at paid-in amount of 206,328 yen per unit to procure funds for new property
acquisitions and for other purposes.

3. ADRissued new units through public offering at an offer price of 263,445 yen (paid-in amount: 255,068 yen) per unit to procure funds for new property acquisitions and for other
purposes.

4. ADR issued new units by way of third-party allotment with Mizuho Securities Co., Ltd. as the allottee at paid-in amount of 255,068 yen per unit to procure funds for new property
acquisitions and for other purposes.

Market Price of Units
The following are the highs and lows of ADR’s unit closing prices on the Tokyo Stock Exchange.

FP 12th FP 13th FP 14th FP 15th FP 16th FP

Period-end July 2016 January 2017 July 2017 January 2018 July 2018
High 299,400 yen 309,000 yen 307,500 yen 285,800 yen 291,500 yen
Low 251,700 yen 267,900 yen 261,600 yen 262,800 yen 264,700 yen

Overview of the Investment Corporation

1 Major Unit-holders

The following are the major unit-holders as of July 31, 2018.

Number of units | Percentage of

Name Address held (units) | issued units (%)
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust Account) | 1-8-11 Harumi, Chuo-ku, Tokyo 317,929 23.55
The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. 2-11-3 Hamamatsucho, Minato-ku, Tokyo 199,390 14.76

(Trust Account)
The Nomura Trust & Banking Co., Ltd.

(Investment Trust Account) 2-2-2 Otemachi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 56,262 4.16
Trust & Custody Services Bank, Ltd. Office Tower Z, Harumi Island Triton 42 089 311
(Securities Investment Trust Account) Square, 1-8-12 Harumi, Chuo-ku, Tokyo ! i

ITOCHU Corporation 2-5-1 Kita-Aoyama, Minato-ku, Tokyo 34,800 257
Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities Co., Ltd. | 2-5-2, Marunouchi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 22,974 1.70
Mizuho Securities Co., Ltd. 1-5-1, Otemachi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 20,708 1.53

. 1776 Heritage Drive, North Quincy,

State Street Bank West Clients Treaty MA 02171 U.S.A 15,944 1.18
Trust & Custody Services Bank, Ltd. Office Tower Z, Harumi Island Triton 14.149 104
(Money Trust Taxable Account) Square, 1-8-12 Harumi, Chuo-ku, Tokyo ! :

25 Bank Street, Canary Wharf, London,
E14 5JP, United Kingdom

Total 737,522 54.63

Note “Percentage of issued units” (number of units held as a percentage of total number of units issued and outstanding) is rounded down to two decimal places.

JP Morgan Chase Bank 13,277 0.98
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2 Directors and Independent Auditor

1. The executive director, supervisory directors, and independent auditor as of July 31, 2018, are as follows.

Total amount of compensation

Title Name Primary concurrent positions during the fiscal period
(thousand yen)
E ti
x.ecu ve Kenji Kousaka Nete! President, AD Investment Management Co., Ltd. Note 2
Director
Supervnsory Yoshiki Oshima President, Akasaka Law Office L.P.C. 1800
Director !
Supervisory . Audit & Supervisory Board Member,
Director Yoshitsugu Oba Mitsubishi Motors Corporation 1,800
Independent .
Note 3
Auditor Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu LLC 19,000

Notes 1. Kenji Kousaka concurrently serves as president of ADR’s asset management company, AD Investment Management Co., Ltd. (ADIM) and executive director of ADR. The
Commissioner of the Financial Services Agency was notified of the concurrent holding of positions on March 5, 2008 pursuant to the provisions of Article 31-4, Paragraph 4 of the
Financial Instruments and Exchange Act (as of the date of this document, Article 31-4, Paragraph 1 of the said Act) prior to its revision made by the provisions of Article 1 of the

Act for Amendment to the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act. (Act No. 65 of 2008).
2. The executive director does not receive compensation from ADR.

3 The compensation paid to the independent auditor includes compensation (2,500 thousand yen) for services other than those prescribed in Article 2, Paragraph 1 of the Certified

Public Accountants Act.

2. Policy for dismissal or refusal of reappointment of independent auditor

The Board of Directors of ADR shall consider the dismissal of independent auditors pursuant to the provisions of the Act on
Investment Trusts and Investment Corporations (Act No. 198 of 1951; as amended), and consider refusal of reappointment by

comprehensively taking into account the quality of the audit, audit compensation, and other factors.

3 Asset Management Company, Asset Custodian, and Administrative Agents

The following is the list of the asset management company, asset custodian, and administrative agents as of July 31, 2018.

Delegation Name
Asset management company AD Investment Management Co., Ltd.
Asset custodian Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited
Management of register of unit-holders Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd.
Management of special Accounts Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd.

Administrative agent

Accounting, taxation, institutional operations | Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited

The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.

Administration of investment corporation

Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited

bonds Mizuho Bank, Ltd.

DBJ Securities Co., Ltd.

Note As of April 1,2018, The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. changed its legal name to MUFG Bank, Ltd.
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I. Fiscal Period Report

Real Estate Portfolio

Real Estate Portfolio

The following lists real estates held by ADR as of July 31, 2018.

15th (Aug. 1, 2017 ~ Jan. 1, 2018)

16th (Feb. 1,2018 ~ Jul. 31, 2018)

) st | tooion | D | ok e Vo 00 19 g o 20 19
o ownership | _period (million yen) i :;g ; f period | (thousand Ofr:,frl“:im a;z:gg f period | (thousand Ofrte?/t;:;:m
o) e (tzna”ts) N((Q 3 Nﬁ2)4 (3 | (tenants) N(()Q 3 N§2)4 )
Note 2 Note 2
P2 | RESIDIA Shimazuyama Shinagawarky, Tokyo | "™V | 5 344/ 3310 1 972 89,224 06 1973 90582 06
P3| RESIDIA Nakameguro Meguroky, Tokyo | ™IS 4 400 2,140 1 1000| 47,256 03 11000 47,25 03
P4 | RESIDIA SetagayaTsurumaki | Setagayaku Tokyo | *™%0M 1 4451 1 300 1 933 34829 02 11000 37,015 02
P7 | RESIDIA Ikejiriohashi Setagayaku Tokyo | *MHEVIES g 1591 1,460 1 978 37074 02 11000 37527 02
P9 | RESIDIA Kudanshita Chiyodarky, Tokyo | *MHEITEE 5 015 2,670 1987 72455 05 1988 74853 05
P10 | RESIDIA Hatagaya Shibuyaku Tokyo | M HEIEE 9 0g0 1,240 1 947 32090 02 1 947 30825 02
P43 | RESIDIA Sakurajosui Setagayaky, Tokyo | MTENIEEEq 056l 1,300 1 927 3325% 02 11000 33743 02
P4 | RESIDIA Kita-Shinagawa Shinagawarky, Tokyo | ™S 5 525 3,060 1 1000| 75455 05 11000 75458 05
P15 | RESIDIA Yoyoginomori Shibuyarky, Tokyo | *PEVIEES | 704 73 1969 19413 0.1 1 908 18650 0.1
P16 | RESIDIA Shinjuku-East Il Shinjukurky, Tokyo NS 7961 919 1 100.0/ 24,051 0.2 11000 25441 02
P9 ﬁa"rf’jf;eu‘jagaw“h° Shibuyarke, Tokyo | AV 560 747 11000 17,944 0.1 11000 17,944 01
P21 | RESIDIA Shinjuku-East I Shinjukurky, Tokyo ™IS g 597/ 1,710 1935 4252 03 1 988 46808 03
P22 | RESIDIA Shinjuku-East Shinjukurky, Tokyo | PHEITEEE 95 1,180 11000 30753 0.2 1980 3178 02
P23 | RESIDIAKandadwamotocho | Chiyodarky, Tokyo | M4 391 5 100 1981 5795 04 11000 58394 04
P24 | RESIDIA Azabujuban Minatoku, Tokyo NS ggs| 1,080 1950 27,040, 02 1 950 28895 02
P25 | RESIDIA Ebisu Shbuyaku Tokyo | MHENTEE 575 710 1 839 18472 0.1 1923 18634 0.1
P-26 | RESIDIA Meguro Shinagawarky, Tokyo | "™V | 738 745 1921 20218 0.1 1 966 20911 0.1
P29 | RESIDIA Hiroo Shibuyaky, Tokyo | Relesste | 1,515 2,180 1 943/ 54271 03 1 917 54672 03
P30 | Pianetta Shiodome Minatoku, Tokyo | *THEVIEES g 790 2 290 1917 59085 04 1 986 59099 04
P31 | RESIDIAKomazawadaigaku | Setagayaku Tokyo | *™IMS | 307 308 1903 10487 0.1 1 815 10648 0.1
P32 | RESIDIA Yoyogi Shibuyarku, Tokyo | *™EVIEES | 307 408 1 820 9423 0.1 1927 9262 0.1
P33 | RESIDIA Nishi-Shinjuku Sinjukuku, Tokyo | ™HEVIEs | 343 448 1913 11,213 01 1770 11,280 0.1
P34 | RESIDIA Kyodo Setagayarky, Tokyo | "I oeg) 348 1938 8539 0.1 1939 9679 0.1
P35 | RESIDIA Oimachi Shinagawaku, Tokyo | Redlete 863/ 1,140 1 938/ 33011 02 1 958 3393 02
P36 | RESIDIA Ebisull Shbuyaky Tokyo | Releste | 2,213 2,880 1 987 73920 05 1 987 76083 05




15th (Aug. 1, 2017 ~ Jan. 1, 2018)

16th (Feb. 1, 2018 ~ Jul. 31, 2018)

Appraisal

P f Book\éalufe value atend T%tfal:r:lamnt)se " ocaupancy | Rental Percentage Tc:;‘atI:r:JamnEse " ocaupancy | Rental Percentage
roperty Name of real estate Location Typeof | atendo of period rateatend of| revenue 8 rateatend of| revenue g
no. ownership | period o atend of ) of total rent | atend of ) of total rent

(millonyen) (million yen) period period | (thousand revenue period period | (thousand revenue

! Notet ' (tenants) ® yen) (%) (temants) ® yen) (#)
Note 2 Note 3 Note 4 Note 2 Note 3 Note 4
P37 | RESIDIA Kamiochiai Shinjukuku Tokyo | Redese | 1,089| 1,470 1 952 42,010, 03 1 976 42980 03
P-38 | RESIDIA Higashi-Shinagawa Shinagawa-ku, Tokyo Real estate 1,908 2,430 1 98.3| 68,992 0.4 1 96.7| 69,933 0.4
P-39 | RESIDIA Meguro Il Meguro-ku, Tokyo Real estate 1,139| 1,370 1 92.7| 33,659 0.2 1 93.7| 35,924 0.2
P-40 | RESIDIA Toranomon Minato-ku, Tokyo Real estate 1,236, 1,650 1 95.11 41,485 0.3 1/ 100.0/ 42,144 0.3
P-41 | RESIDIA Shin-Ochanomizu Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo Real estate 1,095/ 1,530 1 100.0| 40,558 0.3 1 95.3| 41,056 0.3
P-42 | RESIDIA Kagurazaka Shinjukurku, Tokyo | Redestte 863 1,090 1 982 31,25 0.2 1 946 30273 02
P-43 | RESIDIA Oimachi Il Shinagawa-ku, Tokyo Real estate 986 1,300 1 97.5| 34,124 0.2 1 92.7| 36,042 0.2
P45 | RESIDIA Jiyugaoka Meguroky, Tokyo | <PV g 093 1 280 19741 35229 02 1940 34132 02
P-47 | RESIDIA Suidobashi Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo Real estate 2,137 2,810 1 97.0| 76,652 0.5 1 96.1| 76,798 0.5
P-48 | RESIDIA TOWER Nogizaka Minato-ku, Tokyo Real estate 3,451 4,070 1 98.5/ 106,394 0.7 1 93.9/ 105,369 0.7
P-49 | RESIDIA Akasaka Minato-ku, Tokyo Restte | 1,097 1,470 1947 40479 03 1 969 41249 03
P50 | RESIDIA Nishi-Azabu Minatoky, Tokyo  *PIEINEEE 6 544] 8,060 1 988214622 13 1953212751 13
P51 | RESIDIA Daikanyama Shibuyaku, Tokyo | SMENTEEE g 973 2 250 1 946 58,181 04 1 928 5575 03
P52 | RESIDIAIchigaya Shinjukuku, Tokyo PSS 3591 3,090 1 1000| 77,642 05 1 949 78758 05
RESIDIA Roppongi- . Beneficiary nterests

PS3 i o g Minato-ku, Tokyo Bt 3,611 4,680 1 95.1]117,811 07 1 91.4/121,067 07
g | R TOWER Meguro Shinagawaky, Tokyo | Redestte | 14,899 18,700 11000456793 2.9 11000455415 2.8
P-56 | RESIDIA Sangenjaya Setagaya-ku, Tokyo Real estate 2,513] 3,540 1 97.4| 89,490 0.6 1 97.4| 86,536 0.5
P-59 | RESIDIA Kanda-Higashi Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo Real estate 1,545 2,130 1 98.0| 57,139 0.4 1 945 57,175 0.4
P-60 | RESIDIA Higashi-Azabu Minato-ku, Tokyo Real estate 1,359/ 1,500 1 96.4| 41,202 0.3 1 100.0| 43,476 0.3
P-61 | RESIDIA Ebisu-Minami Shibuya-ku, Tokyo Real estate 1,933| 2,200 1 90.5| 56,585 0.4 1 88.9| 56,958 0.4
P-62 | RESIDIATOWER Azabujuban | Minatorku, Tokyo Raestte | 6,134 6,940 1 949195396 1.2 1 942(197,174 1.2
P-63 | RESIDIA Shibuya Shibuya-ku, Tokyo Reste | 1,201 1,550 1 954| 40216 03 11000 41,032 03
P-64 | RESIDIA Nakanobu Shinagawarky, Tokyo | *™VMeS | q 754/ 2 350 1 983 64386 04 1 956 65214 04
P-65 | RESIDIA Azabudai Minatoku, Tokyo | VS| g 549 q 850 11000 49,276 03 1951 49307 03
P-66 | RESIDIA Shibadaimon I Minatoku, Tokyo | IV g 6791 1 950 1 980| 52080 03 11 979 50344 03
P-67 | RESIDIA Kanda Chiyodaku, Tokyo | Redesae | 1,084] 1,470 11000 39,565 0.2 1 964 40,045 02
P-68 | RESIDIA Sangenjaya I Setagaya-ku, Tokyo Real estate 1,214 1,500 1 97.7 39,432 0.2 1 96.9 39,821 0.2
P-69 | RESIDIA Nishi-Shinjuku I Shinjukuku Tokyo | Relesae | 1,704 2,210 1 904| 58496 04 1 956| 58,040 04
P70 | RESIDIA Hiroo-Minami Shibuya-ku, Tokyo Realestte 869 1,030 11000 29213] 02 11 905 28747 02
P72 | RESIDIA Mejiro-Otomeyama | Shinjukuky, Tokyo | XM | 9741 9 140 1900 31,475 02 1789 28779 02
P73 | RESIDIA Shibaura Minatoky, Tokyo ~ *PHAINEES 4391|5860 1959167722, 1.1 1960170382 1.1
P-74 | RESIDIA Gotenyama Shinagawa-ku, Tokyo Real estate 876 984 1 100.0| 28,365 0.2 1 88.2| 29,022 0.2
P-75 | RESIDIA Yutenji Meguroku Tokyo | NS5 0351 6,140 1 956153634 1.0 1 957153314 09
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P76 Barg;mf]’;h‘ba”’a BV | prinatoky Tokyo | RIS g gg7 1 19 400 1961317994 20 1987322467 20
P79 | RESIDIA Kamimeguro Meguroku, Tokyo ™IS 48] 1,050 11000 29534/ 02 1 922 29486 02
P-84 | RESIDIA Kita-Shinjuku Shinjukuku Tokyo | Relestte | 1,366 1,660 1 962 44494 03 1 962 45704 03
P-85 | RESIDIA Komazawa Setagayaky, Tokyo | MHEITEE g3 1200 11000 28,095 02 11000 28095 02
P-86 | RESIDIA Shibaura KAIGAN Minatoky, Tokyo | AN 5 347/ 3,100 1 974 83274 05 1 926 84718 05
P87 | RESIDIA Ichigaya-Yakuoji Shinjukurky, Tokyo ™IS g 9871 2,500 1 947 64784 04 1 973 64190 04
P-88 | RESIDIA Yoga Setagayaku Tokyo | Relete | 1,540 1,880 1 97.3] 49367 03 11000/ 50995 03
P89 | RESIDIATOWER Nakameguro | MegurokuTokyo | Redesste | 3,317 4,550 1 97.3]116585 07 1 968119558 0.7
P-90 | RESIDIA Sasazukal Shibuyaku, Tokyo | NI 3 400 4,700 1990119360 038 1 98.0 120,931 0.7
P-91 | RESIDIA Meguro I Meguroky, Tokyo | VIS 954 1 350 1 970/ 33528 02 11000/ 34544 02
P-92 | RESIDIA Jiyugaoka l Setagayaky, Tokyo | IINEE 779  9g) 111000 24985 0.2 11000 27321 02
P-93 | RESIDIAKudanshitall Chiyodaky, Tokyo | *MHENTEEq 507 1,710 1 968 43185 03 1939 43964 03
P94 | RESIDIA Omori I Shinagawarky, Tokyo | "™V q 500/ 2 180 1 961 55650 0.3 1 961 58347 04
P-g5 | RESIDIA Shirokane-Takanawa | Minatoku, Tokyo | ™85 4 447 2 010 11000 50,393 03 1931 52357 03
P96 | RESIDIA Nakaochiai Shinjukurky, Tokyo | PN 3. 773 4,340 1 986116219 07 1971118270 07
P-g7 | RESIDIA Nakameguro I Meguroku, Tokyo | NI g 196/ 1 450 1 980 36743 02 1 980 36590 02
P98 | Artis Court Minamiaoyama Minatoku, Tokyo  *THENIEES g 799/ 1,990 1908 54890 03 1 955 51,181 03
P-99 | RESIDIAYotsuya Sanchome | Shinjukuku, Tokyo | XVt 5 gg | 2 770 1 963 83978 05 1 956 81487 05
P-100 | RESIDIA Takanawa Katsurazaka | Minatoku, Tokyo ~ *™EIIess| 943/ q 119 11000/ 28552 0.2 1 958/ 29722 02
P-101 | RESIDIA Ebisu lll Shibuya-ku, Tokyo Real estate 649 765 1 95.9| 18,722 0.1 1 100.0/ 20,352 0.1
P-102 | RESIDIA Shinjukugyoen Shinjukurky, Tokyo ™IS 7951 939 11000 24,639 02 11000 24653 02
P-103 | RESIDIA Minami Shinagawa | Shinagawaku, Tokyo | X5 4 199/ 1 450 11000 39,142 0.2 1 952 36370 02
P-104 | Chester Court Ochanomizu | Chiyodaku, Tokyo | ™ Iass| 3 470 3 800 1 99.3/108096 07 1 985107479 07
P-105 | RESIDIA Kanda-wamotocho Il | Chiyodaku, Tokyo | ™85 4 599 1 630 1977 43110 03 11000 44,065 03
P-106 | RESIDIA Shinagawa Shinagawarky, Tokyo | ™IS 996 1270 1| 1000 30816 0.2 1) 930 33,181 0.2
P-107 | RESIDIA Yoyog Shbuyaku Tokyo | Redesat 896 962 1 965 2485% 02 1 943/ 25019 02
P-108 | RESIDIA Nakanobull Shinagawarky, Tokyo | "™V |40 1,040 1 957 26051 02 11000 27949 02
P-109 | RESIDIA Ochanomizu Il Chiyodaku, Tokyo | *™EVIss - gq3 971 11 100.0| 24,695 0.2 1 91.9] 24,542 0.2
P10 | RESIDIA Mishuku Setagayaky Tokyo | IS q 189 1310 1 1000| 33023 02 1 958 32921 02
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C1 | RESIDIA Mitsukoshimae Chuoky Tokyo | MENTEE g 554 2 610 1 969 68570 04 1992 68056 04
C2 | RESIDIAKamata Otaku, Tokyo el Tt 2,083 3,580 1987 98118 06 1 975101841 06
C3 | RESIDIA Ikebukuro Toshimarku, Tokyo | ¥ q 3851 1,800 1 968 51922 03 1 952 49,521 03
C4 | RESIDIABunkyo-Hongo Bunkyoku Tokyo | VIS g 5481 5 290 11000 59,094 04 1 986 58535 04
C5 | RESIDIA Aszkusabashi Tatoky Tokyo | FEIIEES 9961 1,470 1 970 40493 03 1978 40172 02
C6 | Maison Eclairee Ekoda Nerimarku, Tokyo | PV 904 1,120 1979 35490 02 1 958 36234 02
C7 | RESIDIAUeno-Okachimachi | Taitoku Tokyo | *™201s 5 835/ 3 740 1985 99,95 06 1 975102604 06
C8 | RESIDIA Bunkyo-Hongo | Bunkyoky Tokyo ™IS g 508] 1,990 11000 52480 0.3 1 934 50387 03
C9 | RESIDIA Ryogoku sumidaku Tokyo | TS ggp 1240 11000 33227 02 1 985 33425 02
C1o | RESIDIA Higashi Ginza Chuoky Tokyo | MRS | 5014] 5740 1 989149284 09 1926150432 09
Crp | RESIDIANROND2SININGYOChO | o, tokyo P 5 940 3,880 1989 9953 06 11000100994 06
C13 | RESIDIA Omori-Higashi Otarky, Tokyo Rl Teess | 1,822 2,070 1979 57,350 04 1 989 57179 04
C15 | RESIDIA Kinshicho Sumidarku Tokyo | #3084 4,560 1 9721120937, 08 1981122767 08
C16 | RESIDIA Negishi Taitoku Tokyo | MRS g7 g4 1 965 27,59 02 11000/ 29,375 0.2
C17 | RESIDIA Shinkawa Chuoky Tokyo | AR | q 803 2430 1984 65132 04 1937 65908 04
(48 | RESIDIA Kamilkebukuro Toshimarky, Tokyo | IS 5370 710 1950 21,388 0.1 1979 22069 0.1
C19 | RESIDIA Shin-nakano Nakanoky, Tokyo |V 350 511 1903 14217 0.1 11000 15055 0.1
C21 | RESIDIA BunkyoYushimall | Bunkyoky, Tokyo | M| 9941 9 290 11000 33998 02 1932 349% 02
C22 | RESIDIA Tsukii Chuoku, Tokyo relse | 1,314 1,910 11000 52248 0.3 1 961 5282 03
(23 | RESIDIA Sasazuka Suginamiku, Tokyo | *MEVIEES g 7991 2,190 1935 61466 04 1 934 63316 04
C24 | RESIDIAKyobashi Chuoku, Tokyo ralese | 1,112 1,520 11000 51,184 03 11000 38847 02
C25 | RESIDIA Tamagawa Otarky, Tokyo R TS 1,166 1,690 1 934 46328 03 11000 47,709 ~ 03
C26 | RESIDIA Korakuen Bunkyoky Tokyo <IN 544 788 1972 21,460 0.1 1905 21,854 0.1
C27 | RESIDIA Ginza-Higashi Chuoky Tokyo | ¥V | g 8931 2,500 1 965 67,186 04 1 955 69407 04
C28 | RESIDIAOji Kita-ku, Tokyo i TS| 785 1,060 11000/ 33711 02 11000/ 33710 0.2
C29 | RESIDIA Mejiro I Toshimaky, Tokyo | Redeste 971 1,260 1983 37020 02 1930 36441 02
C31 | RESIDIA Tsukishima Chuoku, Tokyo rlese | 1,011 1,300 1977 37,000 02 1977 37186 02
C32 | RESIDIA Kamata Otaky, Tokyo relete | 1,267 1,680 1 930 47,378 03 1 974 46867 03
(33 | RESIDIA Tsukishima Chuoky Tokyo | ™ ENTEE | 5 284 3,010 1 1000 82364 05 1 962 81,674 05
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C34 | RESIDIAKinshicho I Sumidaky, Tokyo | Relestte | 2,226 2,700 1 993 74,800 05 1 986 76087 05
C35 | RESIDIABunkyo-Otowa Bunkyoku Tokyo | NI 3 9441 4,070 1 963111,998 07 1990120005 07
C36 | RESIDIA Bunkyo-Sengoku Bunkyoky, Tokyo PN 45 g1 1 909 2481 02 1972 26742 02
(37 | RESIDIA Bunkyo-Yushima Bunkyoky Tokyo  *MENIEES 097/ 1,370 1 953 36306 02 1 941 38462 02
(38 | RESIDIA lkegami Otarku, Tokyo Rt 342 417 1939/ 13016 0.1 11000 14,161 0.1
C39 | RESIDIANihonbashi-Ningyocho | chuoku, Tokyo @ Itasss| 497 774 1929 21667 0.1 1 915 21948 0.1
C-40 | RESIDIA Bunkyo-Sengoku I Bunkyo-ku, Tokyo Real estate 1,341 1,720 1 Q7.9 45,796 0.3 1 92.5| 46,603 0.3
C41 | RESIDIAlriya Tatok, Tokyo | FEEIIEES 870 1,140 1983 37,844 02 1977 36403 02
C42 | RESIDIA Nihonbashi-Hamacho | chuoku, Tokyo Relee | 1,244 1,580 1/ 1000 43940 0.3 1 979 42853 03
C43 | RESIDIA Shin-Okachimachi | Taitoky, Tokyo Relse | 1,750 2,110 1 987 58639 04 11000 58998 0.4
(44 | RESIDIA Chidoricho Otaku, Tokyo Relse | 1,200 1,430 1 966 43054 03 1 886 42032 03
C45 | RESIDIA Shinkawa I Chuoku Tokyo MBS g 5571 1,620 1 985 44,68 03 1 905 4309 03
(46 | RESIDIA Mejiro Toshimarku, Tokyo | *"2YS g 078] 8,080 1 986231,483 15 198523283 14
C47 | RESIDIAKasai Edogawarku, Tokyo ™IS g5g) 834 111000 26659 0.2 1967 27602 02
(48 | RESIDIA Nihonbashi-Bakurocho | Chuo-ku, Tokyo Relse | 5,072 7,090 1 974192783 12 1 970192040 12
C49 | RESIDIA Suginami-Honancho | Suginamiku, Tokyo | ¥ 3 507 5 440 1 96.6/149,192] 09 1 960148250 0.9
C50 | RESIDIA Shinltabashi ltabashiku, Tokyo | NI gg3] 9 750 11000 29,739 02 11000 29,739 02
C51 | RESIDIA Kiba Kotoku Tokyo | ™VIass| 4 78 2 990 1 942/ 7795% 05 1 968 82674 05
G52 | RESIDIA BunkyoYushimalll | Bunkyoku Tokyo | st 4 ggs 4 560 11000 38619 02 11000 39,617 02
53 ﬁiimfggg: Bunkyoku Tokyo | Redeste | 2,269 3,050 1 982 82197 05 1 993 83519 05
(54 | RESIDIA Tsukishima Chuoku Tokyo ~ *MEVIESS] 5 4551 3680 1987 91,99 06 1 961 93503 06
€55 | RESIDIA Minami-senjyu Arakawaky, Tokyo | IS 5 394 3,560 1 97.3]163180 1.0 1 953164429 10
C56 | RESIDIA Ogikubo SuginamikuTokyo | Redese | 1,800 2,320 1 952 60,700 04 1 987 63374 04
Cs7 | RESIDIA Monzennakacho Kotoku Tokyo NS 640 1,350 1 956 3575% 02 1 956 37405 02
(58 | RESIDIA Ochanomizu Bunkyoku Tokyo | NI 5 0971 2,920 1979 77338 05 1 964 77,232 0.5
€59 | RESIDIA Omori OtekyTokyo ~ *MEVIEEE g 97 1,500 11000/ 42541 03 11000/ 42810 03
C60 | RESIDIA Nakamurabashi Nerimaku, Tokyo ™IS g 535] 1,370 1 946 37619 02 1 946 39142 02
C61 | RESIDIA Kachidoki Chuoky Tokyo | MENTEE g 246 2470 11000 64,452 04 1983 66242 04
C62 | RESIDIA Bunkyo-Otowall Bunkyoky Tokyo | NI 570 3,050 1 978 81,007 05 1 935 82530 05
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C63 | RESIDIAKinshicho I Kotoku Tokyo | ™I 46 850 11000 25414 02 11000 25426 02
(64  RESIDIA Kamatall Otaku, Tokyo s 9290 1,250 1909 33589 0.2 1 942 33825 02
C-65 | RESIDIA TOWER Kamikebukuro | Toshimaku, Tokyo | ™01 7 840 11,600 1981728073 46 1 977735352 46
(-66 | RESIDIA Takashimadaira Itabashi-ku, Tokyo Real estate 521 614 1 100.0] 16,195 0.1 1 100.0] 16,193 0.1
C-67 | RESIDIA Shimura-Sakaue Itabashi-ku, Tokyo Real estate 605 706 1 100.0| 18,084 0.1 1 100.0| 18,084 0.1
C68 | RESIDIAShimura-Sakavell | itabashiku Tokyo | ™IS q 106 1370 11000 35381 02 11000 35372 02
(69 | RESIDIA Shimura-Sakaue Il Itabashi-ku, Tokyo Real estate 430 500 1 100.0/ 13,617 0.1 1 100.0| 13,608 0.1
C70 | RESIDIA Ikebukuro West ltabashiku, Tokyo | VIS g 1971 q 360 1 946 41,880 03 1 97.6 44800 03
C71 | RESIDIA Ojima Kotoku Tokyo | ™HVMess 4 573 1,500 1967 43229 03 1 978 44539 03
C72 | RESIDIA Machiya Arakawarku, Tokyo | "R g q85) 1 380 1 920 41,698 03 1 960 43005 03
C73 | RESIDIA Ueno-lkenohata Taitoky Tokyo | IS g 9741 5070 1 988 55838 04 1 975 54820 03
(74 | RESIDIA Nerima Nerimaky, Tokyo ™IS 593 458 11000 18060 0.1 1/ 1000 18060/ 0.1
C75 | RESIDIA HigashiNihonbashi [ Chuoku Tokyo | @ 3071 491 11000/ 14,59 0.1 1 963 14616 0.1
C76 | RESIDIA Nakano Nakanoky, Tokyo | Redleste 689 822 11000 22131 0.1 1901 21,019 0.1
C-77 | RESIDIA Ogikubo II Suginami-ku, Tokyo Real estate 488 563 1 100.0/ 13,620 0.1 1 100.0| 13,620 0.1
C78 | RESIDIA Minamiyukigaya Otarky, Tokyo Rl Tleess | 1,353 1,550 1 918 42335 03 1 953 41,99 03
C79 | RESIDIA Akihabara Tatoky Tokyo | M 9931 1,00 1 976 34202 02 1975 33731 02
C80 | RESIDIA Asakusa-Azumabashi | Sumidaku Tokyo | ™IS gog 1 150 1 967 33076 02 1 950/ 32946 02
C-81 | RESIDIA Omori Otarky, Tokyo el TS| 1 417 1,680 1 958 40823 03 1 987 43255 03
cgy | RESIDIANonbashBaKurocho | o, tokyo eI 5 017 2,480 1 969 60338 04 11000 64,271 04
cay | RESIDIANTonbashtBakurocho | o, toryo  Eeefermess g 67 2310 11000 60940 04 1907 62406 04
(-84 | RESIDIA Bunkyo-Hongo Il Bunkyoku Tokyo | IV g 4051 1,920 1 935 47,93 03 11000 47,807 03
(85 | RESIDIAShin-Okachimachill | Taitoku Tokyo | ¥ M6 4 944 5 440 1977140079 09 1 969139280 09
C-86 | RESIDIA Kameido KotokuTokyo ™IS 3074 3360 1 978 85048 05 1 970 87,801 05
C87 | RESIDIAKoenji Suginamiky, Tokyo | <M ENTEES | q 493 1,570 1 976/ 40775 03 1 982/ 40295 0.2
(88  RESIDIA KamataV Otaku, Tokyo releste | 2,367 2,500 - - - - 1 966 47825 03
C-89 | RESIDIA Kamata IV Ota-ku, Tokyo Redlestate 3,388 3,550 - - - - 1 97.6 68,611 0.4
S2 | Chester House Kawaguchi | Sond8uchishl  Befnitasts g/ 744 1923 27,703 02 1 974 29,666 02
S4 | RESIDIA Higashi-Matsudo Matsudoshi, Chiba | ™IS 1 019 1,200 1 959 43264 03 1954 42151 03
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S5 | RESIDIA Shin-Yokohama oo RIS 1,755 2,080 11000 61,470 04 11000 61479 04
$7 | RESIDIA Chofu ChofushiTokyo | ™IS q 063 1,180 1 981 34459 0.2 1 975 34235 02
St | Tokyo Student-House WAKO | Wakoshi,Saitama | *™essts | g0g/ 797 11000 26,182 0.2 11000/ 26,186 0.2
S2 | RESIDIA Kokubunji Kokubunjishi,Tokyo | ™S | 497/ 456 11000 18470, 0.1 11000 19,692 0.1
S14 | RESIDIAYokohama-kamnai [ 00 Rmasfh BRI g 5071890 1951 54997 03 1991 55223 03
S45 | RESIDIA Okurayama g S 706 932 11000 26865 02 11000 26719 0.2
$16 | RESIDIA Musashikosugi ﬁ:;“;g:fj:hi’ Rlese | 1,480 1,940 1 988 57,09 04 1 918 55694 03
RESIDIA Funabashi | o Benefinynerests

el — Funabashishi,Chiba | ™IS 5 500 3220 11000 93383 06 11000 93301 06
S49 | RESIDIA Kichiof Toponoshi, S| 1,428 1,750 1959 47,270 03 1980 49,103 03
20 | rower | eponamash ‘Qf;e‘h;.jé:i;th}i‘io 11,547 15,500 11000568349 36 11000572115 35
S22 | Life & Serior House Kohokul | (2 0n2S"" Mo | 1,574 2,200 11000 71,074 04 11000/ 71,069 04
523 | College Court Tanashi Toaoost - [fades 758 1,130 11000 32760 02 11000 32760 0.2
S24 | RESIDIA Urayasu Urayasushi,Chiba | NS 5 0571 2 950 1 994 83453 05 1 972 87,824 05
S25 | RESIDIA Minami-Gyotoku Ichikawashi, Chiba | ™IS 1ol 1,070 111000 33565 02 1941 34306 02
$26 | RESIDIA Urayasu I Urayasushi,Chiba ™IS 795 1,040 T 986 31765 02 1 986 32454 02
527 | RESIDIA Gyotoku Ichikawarshi, Chiba | PHEVIEES | 750 97 1 960 33146 0.2 11000 34163 0.2
$28 | RESIDIA Kawasaki pislonnl R 1,608 2,210 1 923 61,700 04 1 957 63122 04
$29 | Cocofump Hiyoshi Koo TSRS 9911 1,170 11000 45000 03 11000 45000 03
$30 | RESIDIA Sagamihara T S 1,053 1,300 11000 43352 03 11000 43232 03
S31 | RESIDIA Yokohama Bashamichi | (0 OHneh SRS 774 1,160 11000 37,707 02 11000 37,282 0.2
$32 | RESIDIA Hon-Atsugi iveituid Releste 638 709 1 943 23498 0.1 1 981 2503 02
S-33 | RESIDIA Funabashi lll Funabashi-shi, Chiba Real estate 665 705 11 100.0 20,127 0.1 1 100.0 20,127 0.1
$34 | RESIDIA Funabashi IV Funabashishi, Chiba | ™/ Mees | 419 503 - - - - 11930 9094 0.1
R2 | RESIDIA Imadegawa Kyotoshi Kyoto IV g 404/ 1,660 1/ 1000 60,750 0.4 111000 54491 03
R4 | RESIDIA Higashizakura Nagoyashi, Aichi | NI g oq41 9,410 1935 45179 03 1897 46172 03
RS | RESIDIA Kameyama Kameyamasshi, Mie | ™IS g 593 1 150 111000 60377 04 1 983 59676 04
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Propert . Type of aten\éc;’ valueatend| ot enants Ocupaney | Rental Percentage | of tenants Ocaupaney |- Rental Percentage
perty Name of real estate Location ype ot ! of period rateatend of| revenue rateatend of| revenue
no. ownership | period o atend of eriod | (thousand of total rent | atend of eriod | (thousand of total rent
(million yen) (million yen) -~ periog P @ en) revenue | period P @ en) revenue
Notet ' (tenants) Not Nyt (%) (tenants) | Nyt (#)
Note 2 ote3 ote 4 Note 2 ote3 ote 4
R6 | RESIDIA Ryokuchikoen Toyonakasshi, Osaka | *™PIMEES | ggq | 970 1 949/ 30512 02 1983 31137 02
R-8 | RESIDIA Kobe Port Island Kobeshi, Hyogo | ™M 3394 4,150 11000 125510 08 11000125425 08
R0 | RESIDIA Hakata Fukuokast Rdeste | 1,236 1,470 1 988 51,529 03 1 975 52,101 03
R1 | RESIDIA Tenjinbashi Osakashi,Osaka | *MHENIES | 37 q 160 1976 36277 02 1 960 3585 02
R-12 | RESIDIA Sannomiya-Higashi Kobe-shi, Hyogo Real estate 1,932 2,870 1 97.5| 88,799 0.6 1 96.0/ 90,148 0.6
R13 | KC21 Building Sendaishi, Miyagi Realesate 862 924 1) 96.4| 37,286 0.2 1 945 37,323 0.2
R-14 | RESIDIA Utsubokoen Osaka-shi, Osaka Real estate 1,037| 1,530 1 87.0| 45,372 0.3 1 98.8| 47,586 0.3
R15 | RESIDIA Kyoto-ekimae Kyotoshi, Kyoto | <IN g 7651 2 490 1981 77,05 05 1 982 78210 05
R16 | RESIDIA Takaoka Nagoya-shi, Aichi Raleste | 2,130 3,250 1 925 96,123 0.6 1 947 97,146 0.6
R17 | RESIDIA Hibino Nagoyasshi, Aichi | IV g 1961 1,450 1 984 65729 0.4 11 99.1| 67,547 0.4
R49 | RESIDIA Tenjin-Minami Fukuokash, Beefcayinterets| g3 4 180 1 946 39415 02 1 982 39737 02
Fukuoka in trust
R20 | RESIDIA HakataekiMinami | koK fdayileets 315 401 1975 15760 0.1 1974 16027 0.1
R-21 | RESIDIA Hisaya-Oodori Il Nagoya-shi, Aichi Real estate 598 803 1 100.0| 27,699 0.2 1 90.4| 26,333 0.2
R-24 | RESIDIA Minami-Ichijo ai"ki‘;i’g:hi’ Realestete 1,447 1,950 11 989 75791 0.5 11 943 75,041 0.5
R25 | RESIDIA Odori-Nishi ai"ki‘;i’g:hi’ Ralesste | 1,190] 1,390 1 950 55,333 0.3 1 97.8| 58487 0.4
R-26 | RESIDIA Kita-Sanjo a‘j)"ki‘;i’g:hi’ Realstate 989 1,410 11 99.3 50,270 0.3 11 954 49,170 03
R-27 | RESIDIA Shirakabe-Higashi Nagoya-shi, Aichi Redlestte 748 925 1] 100.0| 32,436 0.2 1 914 32441 0.2
R29 | RESIDIA Uzumasa Kyoto-shi, Kyoto Redlesate 641 769 1] 100.0 33,792 0.2 1] 89.8 33,960 0.2
R-30 | RESIDIA Izumi Nagoya-shi, Aichi Real estate 3,296, 4,300 1 92.0/137,437 0.9 1 98.41144,842 0.9
. . Sapporo-shi,
R-31 | RESIDIA Maruyama Kita-Gojo Hokkaido Real estate 9431 1,210 1 98.4| 45,311 0.3 1 90.2| 44,894 0.3
R-32 | RESIDIA Tokugawa Nagoya-shi, Aichi Real estate 713 871 1 95.9] 29,020 0.2 1 100.0/ 29,700 0.2
R34 | RESIDIA Odori-Koen :jf’ki‘;irg:hi’ Realstate 1,823 2,500 1| 955 93,643 0.6 1| 985 95524 0.6
R35 | RESIDIA Tanimachi Osaka-shi, Osaka Ralete | 1,085 1,620 11 949 46,695 0.3 11 947 46,360 0.3
R36 | RESIDIA Hisaya-Oodori Nagoyasshi, Aichi | IV g31] 950 1 971 29625 02 1 89.2) 28698 0.2
R37 | RESIDIASendai-Miyamachi | Sendaishi, Miyagi |0 5oq 753 11000 24023 02 11000 26178 02
R-38 | RESIDIA Hirosedori Sendaishi, Myagi | *TEIEE 470 682 11000 21,842 0.1 11000 21,839 0.1
R-39 | RESIDIA Edobori Osaka-shi, Osaka Real estate 1,387 1,850 1 95.3| 57,792 0.4 1 100.0| 57,885 0.4
R-40 | RESIDIA Kyomachibori Osaka-shi, Osaka Real estate 996 1,360 1 96.8| 42,452 0.3 1 97.8| 43,044 0.3
R-41 | RESIDIA Esaka SutashiOsaka | CMETEES g 099 1270 1 918 37413 02 11000/ 39,45 0.2
R42 | RESIDIA Nishijin Fukuokast, o Tiesss | 2,246 3,120 1 962105604 07 1 992106974 07
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I. Fiscal Period Report

15th (Aug. 1, 2017 ~ Jan. 1, 2018)

16th (Feb. 1, 2018 ~ Jul. 31, 2018)

Appraisal |1otal numb Total numb

Pronpoe'rty Name of real estate Location o;’;}iﬁ:};p B%jgfg’ufe vaol;x;;;(loegd Eti%m;tf:r ra(z:cautp::dc);f rs\fgr:zle gfeggf:lig:t %a{ti%r;;t;r ra(i:cal{(p::d%f rE:;:iL E:{;i:ltraegnet

e lrr) | 7| Gt |l e

(tenants) Note 3 Note 4 ® (tenants) Note 3 Note 4 ®
Note 2 Note 2

R-43 | RESIDIA Tsurumai Nagoyashi, Aichi | NI g 1441 1 670 1 938 51,863 03 1 977 57,750 04
R44 | RESIDIA Kobe-Isogami Kobeshi Hyogo | ™S5 504 3730 1 953/112300 07 1933111906 07
R4s | RESIDIA Kita-Nijyo-East D2pporsh fefdyiteets | gsg 1,090 1 967 42061 03 1 983 41,829 03
R-46 | RESIDIA Shinsaibashi West Osakashi,Osaka | *THEVIES | q 874/ 2470 T 966 72,118 05 1 948 74420 05
R-47 | RESIDIA Marunouchi Nagoyashi, Aichi | <ENIEEE 9441 9 210 1932 39342 02 1 945 40308 0.2
R-48 | RESIDIA Sapporo-Ekimae 2pporosh RIS | 1,426 2,150 1979 75597 05 1 974 74782 05
R49 | RESIDIA Gosho-Higashi Kyotoshi Kyoto NI g 198/ 1,580 1 957 45090 03 1/ 1000 48640 0.3
RS0 | RESIDIA Rakuhoku Kyotoshi, kyoto @It g5l 030 1 975 34082 02 1 988 35385 02
R-51 | RESIDIA Miyakojima | & II Osaka-shi, Osaka Real estate 3,224 4,860 1 98.21155,748 1.0 1 97.81154,085 1.0
R52 | RESIDIATOWER Sendai Sendaishi, Myagi | ™SS q 708 1,980 1 917 68600 04 1922 70631 04
RS3 | RESIDIA Higashizakura Nagoyashi, Aichi | TN | 5 8591 3530 1 846108905 07 1 870111568 07
R54 | RESIDIA Tsutsujigaoka Sendaishi, Miyagi | S| 1750 2,390 1 960 83153 05 1 984 84295 05
R55 | RESIDIA Kobe-Motomachi Kobeshi Hyogo | ™IS g 9361 1,320 1981 44070 03 1930 43701 03
RS6 | RESIDIA Sendai-Honcho Sendaishi, Myagi | “TEVIES g 096 1,610 1 983 53781 03 1 954 5373 03
R-57 | RESIDIA Sendai-Haranomachi Sendai-shi, Miyagi Beneﬁ?;amterem 576 862 1 93.6 30,037 0.2 1 95.31 30,556 0.2
Rs8 | RESIDIAMinamilchijo East | ;2Proshh RS 1,044 1,360 11000 48340 03 1 948/ 47517 03
RS9 RESIDIA Shin-Osaka Osckashi Osaka MV ) 755 3650 11000/ 90409 0.6 1 986/105281 07
R60 | RESIDIAOkayamakimae | Seoranasth Facidayileets | g3g| 1,030 11000 35166 0.2 1 1000| 35121 02
R61 | RESIDIA Kyoto Okazaki Kyotoshi Kyoto ™IS o34 345 11000 9,781 0.1 11000 965 0.1
R62  RESIDIASendaiichibancho | Sendaishi, Miyagi | <SS q 09| 1,440 11000 43992 03 11000 4369 03
R63 | RESIDIA Kita-Nijyo-East I Sappora hi Rciiess 545 754 1932 25939 02 1 9.2 2680 02
Rb4 | RESIDIA Takamiya Fukuokash et 496 586 1 984 20242 0.1 1 984 19882 0.1
RG5 | RESIDIA Soen Sappora hi fliilests 390 556 1984 21752 0.1 1983 21,003 0.1
R66 | RESIDIA Tenjin Fukuokash Baefceitest  1135) 1,320 11000 43573 03 1909 41,037 03
R67 | RESIDIA Yakuin-Oodori Fukuokash Baefceitess  q135) 1,340 1989 44295 03 1 945 42452 03
R68 | RESIDIA Hakata I Fukuokash et 9370, 1,610 1 942 51471 03 1981 50,179 03
R69 | RESIDIA Kego Fukuokash et gas 1,130 1989 35602 02 1 953 36904 02
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15th (Aug. 1, 2017 ~ Jan. 1, 2018) 16th (Feb. 1, 2018 ~ Jul. 31, 2018)
Appraisal
Book value Total number Total number
Property . Typeof | atendof valueatend| ot enants Ocupaney | Rental Percentage | of tenants Ocaupaney |- Rental Percentage
Name of real estate Location ; : of period rateatend of| revenue rateatend of| revenue
no. ownership | period T atend of ) of totalrent | atend of ) of total rent
Pe (million yen) ) period | (thousand : period | (thousand
(million yen) period ® n) revenue period ® n) revenue
fore! (tenants) Noge Nyote @) (tenants) No€e Nyote @
Note2 3 4 Note 2 3 4
R70 | RESIDIA Shirakabe Nagoyasshi, Aichi | IS 94719 110 1890 3402 02 1971 34564 02
R-71 | RESIDIA Sakae Nagoya-shi, Aichi Real estate 937 960 1 89.6| 28,026 0.2 1 93.5| 29,132 0.2
A . . . Beneficiary interests
R-72 | RESIDIA Senri-Fujishirodai Suita-shi, Osaka intrust 1,538 1,660 1 100.0| 45,130 0.3 1 100.0| 45,973 0.3
. . . Beneficiary interests
R-73 | RESIDIA Senri-Banpakukoen Suita-shi, Osaka intrust 2,252 2,320 1 100.0| 64,549 0.4 1 100.0 64,519 0.4
R-74 | RESIDIA Sapporo-eki North Sapporo, Hokkaido Real estate 748 706 1 764 1,946 0.0 1 95.9 22,058 0.1
R75 | RESIDIA Hijyama-Koen Hiroshimasshi,  Beefcinineress| o5 707 - - - - 1977 1925 00
7 Iy Hiroshima intrust . , .
Total 426,261|548,888 259 97.2/15836,647|  100.0 263 96.9116,144976|  100.0
Notes 1 “Appraisal value at end of period” is the appraisal value or survey-based value, pursuant to ADR’s Articles of Incorporation and the “Regulations Concerning Accounting of
Investment Corporations” issued by the Cabinet Office, provided by a real estate appraiser as of July 31, 2018.

2. “Total number of tenants,” is counted as “1” if the property is leased under a master lease agreement to a master lessee. Because all properties held by ADR as of July 31, 2018
are leased under a master lease agreement, the “Total” for the “Total number of tenants” column indicates the total number of master lease agreements, which were concluded
with 12 master lessees.

3. “Occupancy rate” is calculated using the formula: “Leased floor area” + “Leasable floor area” x 100.

4. “Rental revenue” is the rental revenue of respective real estate for the fiscal period under review.
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I. Fiscal Period Report

Capital Expenditures

1 Planned Capital Expenditures

Thefollowing table lists the major capital expenditures for renovations currently planned for the real estate and the underlying
real estate of the beneficiary interests in trust ADR owns. The estimated amount includes portions that are to be recorded as
expenses for accounting purposes.

(million yen)

Estimated amounts
Name of real estate Purpose Estimated duration Total Paymentfor . - |tive
(Location) the current .
amounts . amount paid
period

RESIDIA Kudanshita Maior repair work From: Jan. 2018 60 1 1
(Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo) ) P To: Dec. 2018
RESIDIA Shinjuku-East Il Maior repair work From: Mar. 2018 89
(Shinjuku-ku, Tokyo) ) P To: Dec. 2018 - -
RESIDIA TOWER Nogizaka . . From: Oct. 2017
(Minato-ku, Tokyo) Major repair work To: Dec. 2018 129 44 44
RESIDIA Ichigaya . . From: Mar. 2018
(Shinjuku-ku, Tokyo) Major repair work To: Jan. 2019 %6 - -
RESIDIA Higashizakura Il . . From: Jan. 2018
(Nagoya-shi, Aichi) Major repair work To: Jan. 2019 136 2 2

2 Capital Expenditures for the Current Period

The following table lists the major capital expenditures for renovations ADR conducted in the current period. The total capital
expenditures during this fiscal period were 749 million yen for the entire portfolio and, when combined with repairs and
maintenance cost of 567 million yen, the cost of construction work totals 1,317 million yen.

(million yen)
Name of real estate Purpose Implementation period Amount paid
(Location) P P P P

RESIDIA Nishi-Azabu . . From: Nov. 2017
(Minato-ku, Tokyo) Major repair work To: May 2018 184
RESIDIA Arakawa Il Maior repair work From: Mar. 2018 68
(Chuo ku, Tokyo) ) P To: Jul. 2018
RESIDIA Mejiro-Otomeyama Maior repair work From: Mar. 2018 62
(Shinjuku-ku, Tokyo) ) P To: Jun. 2018
Other real estate Renovations 434

Total 749

previous table.

Note Figures have been rounded down to the nearest million yen. Accordingly, the sum totals of the figures presented do not necessarily add up to the “Total” amount indicated in the

\



3 Cash Reserves for Value Enhancement Works and Renovations

/_\ /F ;annce Residence Investment Corporation

Based on medium- to long-term renovation plans for each property, ADR sets aside the following cash reserves, derived
mostly from cash flows of depreciation and amortization (including earnings that are retained), to fund large-scale repair
work and value enhancement works.

(million yen)
FP 12th FP 13th FP 14th FP 15th FP 16th FP
From: Feb. 1,2016 | From: Aug. 1,2016 | From: Feb. 1,2017 | From: Aug. 1, 2017 | From: Feb. 1,2018
To: Jul. 31,2016 To: Jan. 31, 2017 To: Jul. 31, 2017 To: Jan. 31,2018 To: Jul. 31,2018
Balance of reserves at 1,658 1,970 2,144 2,040 1,921
beginning of period
Amount of reserves 605 625 696 738 814
during period
Reversal of reserves 292 451 801 857 744
during period
Amount carried forward 1,970 2,144 2,040 1,921 1,990
to next period
o o [d o o
Acquisitions and Disposals in the 16th FP
1 Acquisitions and Disposals of Real Estate and Asset-Backed Securities
Acquisition Disposition
Pro ert P . ors .
npo. Y| Name of real estate Acquisition Acq.”‘S'Nt),fj” Disposition D'SPOSI,E,;)” Book value Gain (Loss)
date Price date price (million yen) on sales
(million yen) (million yen) y (million yen)
C-88 | RESIDIA Kamata VvV Mar. 20, 2018 2,283 - - - -
C-89 | RESIDIA Kamata IV Mar. 20, 2018 3,268 - - - -
S-34 | RESIDIA Funabashi IV Apr. 27,2018 567 - - - -
R-75 | RESIDIA Hijiyama-Koen Jul. 18,2018 663 - - - -
P-58 | RESIDIA Minami-Aoyama - — | Mar. 13,2018 710 697 6
P-81 | Windsor House Hiroo - — | Apr.6,2018 1,863 1,630 128
Total 6,781 - 2,573 2,327 134

Note “Acquisition price” or “disposition price” is the purchase or sale price entered in the transaction agreements, and does not include various expenses, such as broker commission, and
taxes and duties, required in the acquisition or in the disposition of the concerned real estate.




I. Fiscal Period Report

N

2 Transactions with Interested Parties

1) Transactions
The following are the transactions with interested parties for specified assets in the 16th fiscal period.

Purchase/Sales amount
Classification
Purchase amount Sales amount
Total amount 6,781,500 thousand yen 2,573,000 thousand yen
Breakdown of transaction with interested parties
ITOCHU Corporation 4,181,200 thousand yen (61.7%) - thousand yen / -%
ITOCHU Property Development, Ltd. 1,369,800 thousand yen (20.2%) - thousand yen / -%

2) Amount of Commission Fees Paid
The following are the commission fees paid to interested parties in the 16th FP.

Total amount of Breakdown of transaction with interested parties
. . commission fees i Share
Classification Amount paid g
(A) Payee (B) (B)(A)(%)
(thousand yen) (thousand yen)
Property management fees 1,394,231 ITOCHU Urban Community Ltd. 873,278 62.6
Other rental expenses 109,331 ITOCHU Urban Community Ltd. 69,707 63.8
Advertising expenses 3,279 | ITOCHU Urban Community Ltd. 2,079 63.4
ITOCHU Urban Community Ltd. 19,785 14.6
Other fees 135,742

ITOCHU Human Resources & General

Affairs Services Inc. 75 0.1

Notes 1. Transactions are not listed here if the nominal counter party is an interested party but the actual counter party is clearly a third party.
2. ITOCHU Corporation, ITOCHU Property Development, Ltd., ITOCHU Urban Community Ltd., and ITOCHU Human Resources & General Affairs Services Inc. are interested parties
of the asset management company that have signed an asset management agreement with ADR as stipulated in Article 201, Paragraph 1 of the Act on Investment Trusts and
Investment Corporations and Article 123 of the Enforcement Order thereof, with which ADR engaged in transactions in the 16th FP.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Board of Directors of Advance Residence Investment Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Advance Residence Investment Corporation

(the "Investment Corporation") as of July 31, 2018, and the related statements of income, changes
in net assets, cash distributions and cash flows for the six months then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Investment Corporation as of July 31, 2018, and results of its operations

and its cash flows for the six months then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Japan.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 21 to the financial statements, subsequent to the six months ended July 31,
2018, the Investment Corporation issued investment corporation bonds. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

Palsitte [opnche fohmdlon LLC

October 22, 2018

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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II. Financial Statements

Balance Sheets

As of January 31,2018

(Thousands of yen)

As of July 31,2018

Current assets

Cash and deposits (Notes 8 and 10)

Cash and deposits in trust (Notes 8 and 10)
Operating accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses

Other

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Total current assets

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment (Notes 14, 18, 19 and 24)

Buildings
Accumulated depreciation
Buildings, net
Structures
Accumulated depreciation
Structures, net
Machinery and equipment
Accumulated depreciation
Machinery and equipment, net
Tools, furniture and fixtures
Accumulated depreciation
Tools, furniture and fixtures, net
Land
Construction in progress
Buildings in trust
Accumulated depreciation
Buildings in trust, net
Structures in trust
Accumulated depreciation
Structures in trust, net
Machinery and equipment in trust
Accumulated depreciation
Machinery and equipment in trust, net
Tools, furniture and fixtures in trust
Accumulated depreciation

Tools, furniture and fixtures in trust, net

Land in trust

Construction in progress in trust

Total property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets (Note 24)

Leasehold rights (Note 19)

Leasehold rights in trust (Note 19)

Other

Total intangible assets

12,218,821 13,741,901
9,693,200 9,605,383
198,466 209,929
347,796 483,704
4,874 10,412
(7,274) (7,225)
22,455,884 24,044,107
75,173,544 75,980,399
(12,342,251) (12,997,222)
62,831,292 62,983,176
23,585 23,395
(6,968) (7,132)
16,616 16,263
67,662 82,361
(16,509) (19.859)
51,153 62,502
268,535 289,909
(133,528) (141,887)
135,007 148,021
70,754,369 74,403,244
47,779 44,670
153,340,662 154,333,071
(23,755,307) (25,491,760)
129,585,355 128,841,311
190,982 193,591
(98,473) (103,080)
92,509 90,510
175,646 182,121
(99.261) (105,796)
76,384 76,325
783,450 832,133
(482,282) (518,517)
301,167 313,615
156,457,632 157,302,505
40,254 6,503
420,389,522 424,288,650
1,071,902 -
2,009,390 1,974,953
54 34
3,081,347 1,974,988




As of January 31,2018

(Thousands of yen)

As of July 31,2018

Investments and other assets
Long-term prepaid expenses
Guarantee deposits
Guarantee deposits in trust
Other
Total investments and other assets
Total non-current assets
Deferred assets
Investment unit issuance expenses
Investment corporation bond issuance costs
Total deferred assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Operating accounts payable
Short-term loans payable (Notes 10 and 27)
Current portion of investment corporation bonds (Notes
10 and 26)
Current portion of long-term loans payable (Notes 10,
12,23 and 27)
Accounts payable - other (Note 14)
Accrued expenses
Accrued consumption taxes
Advances received
Other
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Investment corporation bonds (Notes 10, 21 and 26)
Long-term loans payable (Notes 10, 12, 23 and 27)
Tenant leasehold and security deposits
Tenant leasehold and security deposits in trust
Derivatives liabilities (Notes 10, 12 and 23)
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Net assets
Unitholders’ equity (Note 6)
Paid-in capital
Surplus
Capital surplus
Voluntary retained earnings
Reserve for temporary difference adjustment
Total voluntary retained earnings
Unappropriated retained earnings (undisposed loss)
Total surplus
Total unitholders’ equity
Valuation and translation adjustments
Deferred gains or losses on hedges
Total valuation and translation adjustments
Total net assets (Notes 4 and 20)
Total liabilities and net assets

810,490 826,885
535,726 550,532
1,026,585 1,038,903
1,680 1,680
2,374,482 2,418,000
425,845,352 428,681,640
4,396 3,008
116,148 117,266
120,545 120,274
448,421,782 452,846,022
344,006 337,326

- 1,000,000

2,000,000 2,000,000
28,950,000 21,460,000
1,393,127 1,386,590
116,393 87,859
33,866 47,401
57,265 66,474
19,437 18,981
32,914,096 26,404,633
25,500,000 27,000,000
164,968,000 174,458,000
1,217,462 1,227,275
3,247,646 3,228,688

- 3,423
194,933,108 205,917,387
227,847,204 232,322,020
127,690,098 127,690,098
53,220,279 53,220,279
32,866,055 32,529,450
32,866,055 32,529,450
6,798,144 7,087,597
92,884,479 92,837,327
220,574,577 220,527,425
- (3,423)

- (3,423)
220,574,577 220,524,002
448,421,782 452,846,022

/_\ /F ;annce Residence Investment Corporation




II. Financial Statements

Statements of Income

For the six months ended

(Thousands of yen)

For the six months ended

January 31,2018 July 31,2018
Operating revenue (Note 18)
Rental revenue - real estate (Notes 5 and 9) 15,903,228 16,167,076
Gain on real estate sales (Note 5) - 135,079
Total operating revenue 15,903,228 16,302,155
Operating expenses
Expenses related to rent business (Notes 5 and 9) 6,176,934 6,345,214
Asset management fees (Note 14) 1,175,182 1,181,791
Asset custody fees 9,729 9,762
Administrative service fees 61,015 58,712
Directors’ compensation 3, 609 3,600
Taxes and dues 267,061 258,130
Provision of allowance for doubtful accounts 2,080 170
Bad debt expenses 103 -
Other operating expenses 187,910 172,681
Total operating expenses 7,883,626 8,030,063
Operating income 8,019,602 8,272,092
Non-operating income
Interest income 6,501 6,537
Compensation income - 18,000
Reversal of distribution payable 1,024 1,463
Other 690 2,172
Total non-operating income 8,217 28,173
Non-operating expenses
Interest expense (Notes 10, 12 and 23) 885,651 854,191
Interest expense on investment corporation bonds 137,494 131,529
Amortization of investment unit issuance expenses 1,388 1,388
?g;;)srtization of investment corporation bond issuance 10,839 10,748
Borrowing -related expenses 193,302 210,950
Other 393 3,254
Total non-operating expenses 1,229,069 1,212,063
Ordinary income 6,798,749 7,088,202
Income before income taxes 6,798,749 7,088,202
Income taxes — current (Note 15) 605 605
Total income taxes 605 605
Net income (Note 20) 6,798,144 7,087,597
Unappropriated retained earnings (undisposed loss) 6,798,144 7,087,597
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Statements of Changes in Net Assets
For the six months ended January 31, 2018

(Thousands of yen)
Unitholders’ equity
Surplus
Voluntary retained earnings Total Total net
Paid-in capital Reserve for Unappropriated unitholders’ assets
Capital surplus | temporary Total voluntary | retained earnings | Total surplus equity
difference retained (undisposed loss)
earnings

adjustments

Balance at the

beginni ’ 127,690,098 53,220,279 33,202,036 33,202,036 6,642,169 93,064,485 | 220,754,583 | 220,754,583
eginning of period

Changes in items
during the period

Reversal of reserve
for temporary
difference
adjustments

(335,980) (335,980) 335,980 - - -

Dividends from 6978150)|  (6978,150)|  (6,978,150)|  (6,978,150)

surplus

Net income 6,798,144 6,798,144 6,798,144 6,798,144
Total changes in items
during the period - - (335,980) (335,980) 155,974 (180,005) (180,005) (180,005)

Balance at the end of

period 127,690,098 53,220,279 32,866,055 32,866,055 6,798,144 92,884,479 | 220,574,577 | 220,574,577

For the six months ended July 31,2018
(Thousands of yen)

Valuation and translation

Unitholders’ equity adjustments

Surplus
- - Total net
o Voluntary retained earnings | Unappropriated Total Deferred Total
Paid-in ) Reserve for Total retained unitholders’ | &3inor k_)ss valuat[on_and assets
capital Capital i Total surpl it on hedging | translation
surplus temporary | voluntary earnings otalsurpius equity instruments | adjustments
difference | retained | (undisposed
adjustments | earnings loss)

Balance at the
beginning of period 127,690,098| 53,220,279 32,866,055| 32,866,055 6,798,144| 92,884,479|220,574,577 - —-|220,574,577
Changes in items
during the period

Reversal of reserve

for temporary

difference (336,605)|  (336,605) 336,605 - - -

adjustments

SDJ‘;:SE;’dS from (7,134,750)| (7,134,750)| (7,134,750) (7,134,750)

Net income 7,087,597 7,087,597| 7,087,597 7,087,597
Net changes in
items other than
unitholders’ equity (3,423) (3,423) (3,423)
in the fiscal year
Total changes in
items during the - - (336,605) (336,605) 289,453 (47,152) (47,152) (3,423) (3,423) (50,575)
period
2?';255 attheend 127,690,098 53,220,279| 32,529,450 32,529,450 7,087,597| 92,837,327|220,527,425|  (3423)  (3423)220,524,002




II. Financial Statements

Statements of Cash Distributions

For the six months ended
January 31,2018

(Thousands of yen)

For the six months ended
July 31,2018

I. Unappropriated retained earnings

Il. Reversal of voluntary retained earnings
Reversal of reserve for temporary
difference adjustments

1. Dividends
(Dividend per investment unit)

IV. Retained earnings carried forward

6, 798,144,365 yen
336,605,635 yen

7,134,750,000 yen
(5, 285 yen)

7,087,597,394 yen
336,052,606 yen

7,423,650,000 yen
(5,499 yen)

Dividend Policy

In accordance with the distribution
policy set forth in Article 32, Item 1

of ADR’s Articles of Incorporation,
ADR distributes in excess of 90% of
the amount of ADR’s profit available
for dividends as stipulated in Article
67-15 of the Act on Special Measures
Concerning Taxation. In the event of
weak performance by investments,
reserve for dividends will be used in
order to maintain stable payouts into
the future.

Based on this policy, ADR has decided
to distribute 7,134,750,000 yen,
which is the sum of the reversal of
the reserve for temporary difference
adjustments (RTA) of 336,605,635 yen
and unappropriated retained earnings
of 6,798,144,365 yen for the fiscal
period.

ADR does not distribute dividends

in excess of the profits defined in
Article 32, Item 2 of its Articles of
Incorporation.

In accordance with the distribution
policy set forth in Article 32, Item 1

of ADR’s Articles of Incorporation,
ADR distributes in excess of 90% of
the amount of ADR’s profit available
for dividends as stipulated in Article
67-15 of the Act on Special Measures
Concerning Taxation. In the event of
weak performance by investments,
reserve for dividends will be used in
order to maintain stable payouts into
the future.

Based on this policy, ADR has decided
to distribute 7,423,650,000 yen,
which is the sum of the reversal of
the reserve for temporary difference
adjustments (RTA) of 336,052,606 yen
and unappropriated retained earnings
of 7,087,597,394 yen for the fiscal
period.

ADR does not distribute dividends

in excess of the profits defined in
Article 32, Item 2 of its Articles of
Incorporation.




Statements of Cash Flows

For the six months ended

(Thousands of yen)

For the six months ended

January 31,2018 July 31,2018

Cash flows from operating activities
Income before income taxes 6,798,749 7,088,202
Depreciation and amortization 2,651,509 2,682,323
Amortization of investment unit issuance expenses 1,388 1,388
Amortization of investment corporation bond issuance costs 10,839 10,748
Increase (decrease) in allowance for doubtful accounts 214 (49)
Interest income (6,501) (6,537)
Interest expense 885,651 854,191
Interest expense on investment corporation bonds 137,494 131,529
Decrease (increase) in operating accounts receivable (3,464) (11,463)
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses 125,293 (135,908)
Increase (decrease) in accrued consumption taxes 4,840 13,534
Increase (decrease) in operating accounts payable 60,810 (51,454)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable — other 26,353 (485)
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses 30,246 (30,082)
Increase (decrease) in advances received (1,307) 9,209
Decrease in sales of property, plant and equipment - 1,255,921
Decrease in sales of intangible assets - 1,071,902
Decrease (increase) in long-term prepaid expenses 8,428 (16,394)
Other (1,246) (6,671)
Subtotal 10,729,300 12,859,905
Interest income received 372 375
Interest expense paid (1,047,601) (984,173)
Income taxes paid (541) (605)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 9,681,530 11,875,502

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments into time deposits — (6,000,000)
Proceeds from withdrawal of time deposits 4,000,000 1,000,000
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,074,827) (5,953,543)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment in trust (336,492) (1,810,924)
Proceeds from tenant leasehold and security deposits, net (5,661) 9,813
Proceeds from tenant leasehold and security deposits in (11,704) (18,957)
trust, net
Payments for lease and guarantee deposits — (8,684)
Payments for lease and guarantee deposits in trust - (12,318)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 2,571,313 (12,794,614)

Cash flows from financing activities
Increase in short-term loans payable - 3,000,000
Decrease in short-term loans payable - (2,000,000)
Proceeds from long-term loans 11,300,000 21,190,000
Repayments of long-term loans (6,256,329) (19,190,000)
Proceeds from issuance of investment corporation bonds 1,000,000 1,500,000
Redemption of investment corporation bonds (8,000,000) -
Payments for investment corporation bond issuance costs (9,720) (11,866)
Dividends paid (6,976,411) (7,133,757)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (8,942,460) (2,645,623)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,310,382 (3,564,736)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period 17,601,638 20,912,021
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of period (Note 8) 20,912,021 17,347,285
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II1. Notes to Financial Statements

Notes to Financial Statements

1 Organization

Advance residence investment corporation (ADR. Securities Code: 3269) is a listed Residential Japan Real Estate Investment
Trust (J-REIT) that mainly invests in residential properties. It was established through a consolidation-type merger between
the former Advance Residence Investment Corporation and Nippon Residential Investment Corporation on March 1, 2010,
and was listed on the Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT) Securities Section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange (TSE) on March 2,
2010.

The merger made ADR the largest residential J-REIT in terms of asset size, enabling it to upgrade its portfolio while ensuring
its financial stability. The merger also resulted in retained earnings of 43.2 billion yen (32.5 billion yen as of the end of this
fiscal period) due to the profit from negative goodwill, and allowed ADR to demonstrate one of its strengths of delivering
stable dividends over the long term.

ADR’s asset management company, AD Investment Management Co., Ltd. (ADIM), is wholly owned by the Itochu Group and
the group’s key entity, Itochu Corporation, a leading Japanese trading house, is its main sponsor.

2 Basis of Presentation of Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements are essentially an English translation of the audited financial statements of ADR
filed with the appropriate local finance bureau of the Ministry of Finance, prepared in accordance with the provisions set
forth in the Japanese Financial Instruments and Exchange Act and its related accounting regulations and in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Japan (“Japanese GAAP”), which are different in certain respects as to application
and disclosure requirements from the International Financial Reporting Standards.

In preparing these financial statements, certain reclassifications and rearrangements have been made to the financial
statements issued domestically in order to present them in a form which is more familiar to readers outside Japan. Moreover,
the notes to the financial statements include certain information which might not be required under Japanese GAAP but is
presented herein as supplementary information.

ADR does not prepare consolidated financial statements as it has no subsidiaries. Unless otherwise specified, amounts have
been rounded down to the nearest thousand yen. As a result, the totals shown in the financial statements do not necessarily
agree with the sum of the individual amounts.

ADR’s six-month fiscal periods end at either the end of January or July.
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3 Significant Accounting Policies

(1) Depreciation and
amortization
methods of non-
current assets

1)

2)

Property, plant and equipment (including assets in trust)
Depreciated using the straight-line method.
Useful lives of major categories of property, plant and equipment are as follows:
Buildings: 3 to 46 years
Structures: 6 to 50 years
Machinery and equipment: 10 to 15 years
Tools, furniture and fixtures: 2 to 20 years

Intangible assets
Amortized using the straight-line method.
Useful lives of major categories of intangible assets are as follows:
Leasehold rights in trust: 23 to 65 years

3) Long-term prepaid expenses

Amortized using the straight-line method.

(2) Accounting for
deferred assets

1)
2)

Investment unit issuance expenses
Amortized using the straight-line method (three years)

Investment corporation bond issuance costs
Amortized using the straight-line method over the period up to redemption of the investment
corporation bonds.

(3) Basis of recording
allowances

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Estimated uncollectible amounts are recorded for possible losses arising from default on receivables
based on the historical performance of general receivables and a case-by-case evaluation of the
collectability of certain receivables, such as receivables with default possibility.

(4) Basis of recording
revenue and
expenses

Method of accounting for property taxes

For property taxes, urban planning taxes, and depreciable asset taxes on real estate properties held,
ADR records the amount of taxes imposed corresponding to the current fiscal period as an expense for
the property leasing activities.

Furthermore, for the pro rata portion of property taxes ADR paid to the transferor (seller) upon
acquisition of real estate properties, ADR treats the amount as acquisition costs of real estate
properties, instead of recording it as an expense for the property leasing activities. The amount of
property taxes treated as acquisition costs of real estate properties was 3,734 thousand yen in the
previous period and 15,443 thousand yen in the current period.

(5) Hedge accounting

~—

3

4)

Method of hedge accounting
In principal, deferred hedge accounting is applied. Note that special treatment is applied for interest
rate swaps that fulfill certain requirements.
Hedging instruments and hedged items
Hedging instruments: Interest rate swap transactions
Hedged items: Loans
Hedging policy
ADR conducts derivative transactions to hedge risks stipulated in ADR’s Articles of Incorporation in
accordance with its financial policy.
Method for assessing the hedge effectiveness
The effectiveness of hedges is assessed by comparing the cumulative change of cash flows of both
hedging instruments and corresponding hedged items, and then verifying the ratio of change for both.
However, evaluation of effectiveness is omitted for interest rate swaps that satisfy the requirements
for special accounting treatment.

(6) Scope of funds in the
statements of cash
flows

The funds (cash and cash equivalents) in the statements of cash flows consist of cash on hand and cash in
trust; demand deposits and deposits in trust; and short-term investments that are readily convertible into
cash, carry minimal risk of change in value, and are due for redemption in three months or less from the
acquisition date.

(7) Other significant
matters that serve
as a basis for the
preparation of the
financial statements

1)

Accounting for trust beneficiary interests in trust assets such as real estate properties
For trust beneficiary interests in real estate properties, all assets and liabilities of the trust assets, as
well as revenue and income earned from, and expenses incurred for the trust assets are recorded under
the respective account in the balance sheets and statements of income.
Of the accounts used to record the above trust assets, the following accounts are significant and
disclosed separately on the face of the balance sheets.
A.Cash and deposits in trust
B. Buildings in trust; structures in trust; machinery and equipment in trust; tools, furniture and fixtures in
trust; land in trust; construction in progress in trust; and leasehold rights in trust
C. Guarantee deposits in trust
D.Tenant leasehold and security deposits in trust
Accounting for consumption taxes
Consumption taxes and local consumption taxes are excluded from business transaction amounts.
However, accounting for non-current assets and deferred assets is inclusive of consumption taxes and
local consumption taxes.

&,



II1. Notes to Financial Statements

4 Balance Sheets

(1) Minimum net assets as stipulated in Article 67, Paragraph 4 of the Act on Investment Trusts and Investment Corporations

(Thousands of yen)

As of January 31,2018 As of July 31,2018

50,000 50,000

(2) Commitment line agreements
ADR has executed commitment line agreements with banks.

(Thousands of yen)
As of January 31,2018 As of July 31,2018
Total commitment line of credit 20,000,000 20,000,000
Amount used - -
Unused balance 20,000,000 20,000,000

(3) Provision and reversal of the reserve for temporary difference adjustments

For the six months ended January 31,2018
(Thousands of yen)

Funds drawn down
during 15th FP

Balance as of July

31,2017 January 31, 2018 drawing down funds

-, Balance as of Reasons for setting aside and
Initial amount

Reserve for

dividends (Note) 32,866,055

For dividends

33,552,162 33,202,036 335,980

Note that the reserve for dividends is the remaining amounts of gains on negative goodwill which were recorded in past fiscal periods. The outstanding amount is scheduled to be fully
drawn down in equal amounts or more every fiscal period within 50 years, starting from the end of the fiscal period ended January 31, 2017 (13th FP).

For the six months ended July 31,2018
(Thousands of yen)

Funds drawn down
during 16th FP

Balance as of
January 31,2018

Balance as of July
31,2018

Reasons for setting aside and
drawing down funds

‘ Initial amount

Reserve for

dividends (Note) 32,529,450

For dividends

33,552,162 32,866,055 336,605

Note that the reserve for dividends is the remaining amounts of gains on negative goodwill which were recorded in past fiscal periods. The outstanding amount is scheduled to be fully
drawn down in equal amounts or more every fiscal period within 50 years, starting from the end of the fiscal period ended January 31, 2017 (13th FP).
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5 Statements of Income

(1) Breakdown of operating income (loss) from property leasing activities

(Thousands of yen)
For the six months ended For the six months ended
January 31,2018 July 31,2018
A. Revenue from property leasing activities
Rental revenue - real estate
Rent income 14,151,517 14,276,600
Facility charges 760,367 787,227
Parking fees 428,841 15,340,727 431,954 15,495,782
Other revenue related to property leasing
Income from leasing rights 80,136 88,971
Other 482,364 562,501 582,321 671,293
Total revenue from property leasing activities 15,903,228 16,167,076
B. Expenses from property leasing activities
Expenses related to the rent business
Property taxes 859,178 865,044
Property management fees 1,083,296 1,146,442
Utilities 254,805 255,223
Repairs and maintenance 521,988 567,255
Property-casual insurance 25,543 25,369
Trust fees 69,075 70,873
Other rental expenses 711,555 732,701
Depreciation and amortization 2,651,490 6,176,934 2,682,304 6,345,214
Total expenses from property leasing activities 6,176,934 6,345,214
(CA?;)erating income from property leasing activities 9,726,294 9,821,861
(2) Breakdown of gain on real estate sales
For the six months ended January 31,2018
Not applicable.
For the six months ended July 31,2018
(RESIDIA Minami-Aoyama)
(Thousands of yen)
Income from sales of real estate properties 710,000
Cost of real estate properties sold 697,303
Other sales expenses 5,798
Gain on real estate sales 6,897
(Windsor House Hiroo)
(Thousands of yen)
Income from sales of real estate properties 1,863,000
Cost of real estate properties sold 1,630,520
Other sales expenses 104,297
Gain on real estate sales 128,181

>/



II1. Notes to Financial Statements

6 statements of Changes in Net Assets

(1) Total number of units authorized and total number of units issued and outstanding

(Units)
As of January 31,2018 As of July 31,2018
Total number of units authorized 6,000,000 6,000,000
Total number of units issued and outstanding 1,350,000 1,350,000

7 Statements of Cash Distributions

(1) Reserve for temporary difference adjustments

For the six months ended January 31, 2018

The interim measures of Article 3 of the Supplementary Provisions to the Regulations Concerning Accounting of
Investment Corporations (Cabinet Office Ordinance No. 27 of 2015) have been applied and in the statements of cash
distributions, the reserve for dividends of 33,552,162,785 yen, which is the remaining portion of the amount subdivided
into gains on negative goodwill in previous fiscal periods, has been transferred to the reserve for temporary difference
adjustments. It has become necessary to draw down the reserve in equal amounts or more every fiscal period within
50 years, starting from the end of the fiscal period ended January 31, 2017 (13th FP), which was the period following the
period in which the transfer to the reserve was made. As such, ADR has drawn down 336,605,635 yen of the reserve
during the fiscal period ended January 31, 2018 (15th FP).

For the six months ended July 31,2018

The interim measures of Article 3 of the Supplementary Provisions to the Regulations Concerning Accounting of
Investment Corporations (Cabinet Office Ordinance No. 27 of 2015) have been applied and in the statements of cash
distributions, the reserve for dividends of 33,552,162,785 yen, which is the remaining portion of the amount subdivided
into gains on negative goodwill in previous fiscal periods, has been transferred to the reserve for temporary difference
adjustments. It has become necessary to draw down the reserve in equal amounts or more every fiscal period within
50 years, starting from the end of the fiscal period ended January 31, 2017 (13th FP), which was the period following the
period in which the transfer to the reserve was made. As such, ADR has drawn down 336,052,606 yen of the reserve
during the fiscal period ended July 31,2018 (16th FP).

N



8 Statements of Cash Flows

/_\ /F UAw!vance Residence Investment Corporation

(1) Relationship between the cash and cash equivalents at the end of period in the statements of cash flows and the accounts

reported in the balance sheets

As of January 31,2018

(Thousands of yen)

As of July 31,2018

Cash and deposits 12,218,821 13,741,901
Cash and deposits in trust 9,693,200 9,605,383
Time deposits held over three months (1,000,000) (6,000,000)
Cash and cash equivalents 20,912,021 17,347,285
9 Leases
(1) Operating leases (as a lessee)
Future lease payments are as follows:
(Thousands of yen)
As of January 31,2018 As of July 31,2018
Due within one year 729,540 739,236
Due after one year 12,610,859 12,408,175
Total 13,340,399 13,147,411
Note that the above information includes estimated amounts for lease payments not finalized as of the end of the reporting period.
(2) Operating leases (as a lessor)
Future lease receivables are as follows:
(Thousands of yen)
As of January 31,2018 As of July 31,2018
Due within one year 3,918,856 3,802,751
Due after one year 7,567,406 6,353,964
Total 11,486,262 10,156,715




II1. Notes to Financial Statements

1 O Financial Instruments

(1) General information on financial instruments

1) Policy on financial instruments

In order to secure stable earnings and steady growth of assets under management, ADR procures funds through
loans, issuance of investment corporation bonds (including short-term investment corporation bonds; the same
applies below), issuance of units, and other means of financing for the purpose of purchasing real estate properties
and repaying its debts.

ADR conducts derivative transactions solely for the purpose of hedging against the risk of interest rate fluctuations
and other risks arising from liabilities.

In addition, ADR, in general, manages surplus funds by investing only in bank deposits, savings, negotiable certificates
of deposit, and government bonds for emphasizing sound and stable portfolio management.

2) Description and risks of financial instruments and risk management

Funds through loans and investment corporation bonds are used primarily to finance the acquisition of real estate
properties, repay existing loans, or redeem existing investment corporation bonds. ADR is exposed to liquidity
risk in that it may not be able to raise funds through alternative financing sources by the repayment date or at the
redemption. ADR controls the risk exposures through the preparation of a funding plan on a monthly basis and
seeking and procuring funds through various sources, such as securing the level of funds in hand, spreading out the
loan repayment and bond redemption dates, diversifying borrowing financial institutions, entering into commitment
line agreements, and issuing investment units.

Inaddition, ADR is exposed to the risk arising from fluctuations in interest rates on its loans and investment corporation
bonds with floating interest rates. ADR controls and limits such risk by utilizing derivative transactions (interest rate
swap transactions).

ADR is also exposed to the credit risk that the financial institutions with which it has bank deposits may default.
However, ADR limits the effects of such risk by setting certain limits on the term of deposits and the minimum
credit rating for the financial institutions in which deposits are placed, and by placing deposits with various financial
institutions.

3) Supplementary explanation on fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is based on quoted market prices. If a quoted market price is not available, a
reasonable estimate of fair value is used. Certain assumptions are applied in the fair value measurements and therefore
could result in a different fair value if different assumptions are applied. Furthermore, the contractual amounts of
derivative transactions presented in “Derivative Transactions” below do not represent the market risk exposure of
those derivative transactions.

(2) Fair values of financial instruments
The book values in the balance sheets, fair values of financial instruments, and unrealized gain (loss) are presented

below.

As of January 31,2018

(Thousands of yen)

Book value Fair value Unrealized gain (loss)
1) Cash and deposits 12,218,821 12,218,821 -
2) Cash and deposits in trust 9,693,200 9,693,200 -
3) Short-term loans payable - - -
4) Current portion of investment corporation bonds 2,000,000 2,018,400 (18,400)
5) Current portion of long-term loans payable 28,950,000 29,042,964 (92,964)
6) Investment corporation bonds 25,500,000 26,074,822 (574,822)
7) Long-term loans payable 164,968,000 167,460,223 (2,492,223)
® Fserrlevc?:l\iceret;irzsj:::%r;sinterest rate swaps) - (1.799,418) (1.799,418)

<
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As of July 31,2018

(Thousands of yen)
Book value Fair value Unrealized gain (loss)

1) Cash and deposits 13,741,901 13,741,901 -
2) Cash and deposits in trust 9,605,383 9,605,383 -
3) Short-term loans payable 1,000,000 1,000,572 (572)
4) Current portion of investment corporation bonds 2,000,000 2,003,600 (3,600)
5) Current portion of long-term loans payable 21,460,000 21,552,561 (92,561)
6) Investment corporation bonds 27,000,000 27,544,250 (544,250)
7) Long-term loans payable 174,458,000 177,215,067 (2,757,067)
8) Derivative transactions

(Special treatment for interest rate swaps) - (1,517,960) (1,517,960)
9) Derivative transactions

(Basic treatment for interest rate swaps) 3423 3423 -

*1. Methods of determining the fair value of financial instruments

1) Cash and deposits and 2) Cash and deposits in trust
These instruments are stated at book values because their book values approximate fair values due to their short maturities.
4) Current portion of investment corporation bonds and 6) Investment corporation bonds
The fair values of these instruments are determined using the reference value announced by the Japan Securities Dealers Association. However, if a reference value is not available, the
fair value is deemed to be the present value of future cash flows of principal and interest, discounted at the assumed interest rate for similar borrowings.
3) Short-term loans payable, 5) Current portion of long-term loans payable and 7) Long-term loans payable
The fair values of these financial instruments were determined as the present value of future cash flows of principal and interest, discounted at the assumed interest rate for similar

borrowings.

8) Derivative transactions (Special treatment for interest rate swaps) and 9) Derivative transactions (Basic treatment for interest rate swaps)
Please refer to “Derivative Transactions” below for details.

(3) Redemption schedules of monetary claims and securities after balance sheet date.

As of January 31,2018

(Thousands of yen)
. Due after one | Due after two Due after three Due after four
Due in one Due after five
year through | years through | years through | years through
year or less years
two years three years four years five years
Cash and deposits 12,218,821 - - - - -
Cash and deposits in trust 9,693,200 - - - - -
Total 21,912,021 - - - - -
As of July 31,2018
(Thousands of yen)
. Due after one | Due after two |Due after three Due after four
Due in one Due after five
year through | years through | years through | years through
year or less years
two years three years four years five years
Cash and deposits 13,741,901 - - - - -
Cash and deposits in trust 9,605,383 - - - - -
Total 23,347,284 - -
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(4) Repayment schedules of investment corporation bonds, loans payable, and other interest-bearing loans after balance

sheet date.
As of January 31,2018

Due in one

Due after one

Due after two

Due after three

(Thousands of yen)

Due after four

Due after five

year or less year through | years through | years through | years through years
two years three years four years five years
s
Current [?ortlon of investment 2,000,000 _ 3 3 B B
corporation bonds
Current portion of long-term 28,950,000 B 3 B B B
loans payable
| t t ti
e corporation ~ 4,000,000 1,500,000 ~ 2,000,000 18,000,000
Long-term loans payable - 17,700,000 24,070,000 26,478,000 20,150,000 76,570,000
Total 30,950,000 21,700,000 25,570,000 26,478,000 22,150,000 94,570,000
As of July 31,2018
(Thousands of yen)
Due in one Due after one | Due after two |Due after three Due after four Due after five
year through | years through | years through | years through
year or less years
two years three years four years five years
Short-term loans payable 1,000,000 - - - - -
Current portion of
investment corporation 2,000,000 - - - - -
bonds
i f long-
Current portion of long-term 21 460,000 3 3 B B 3
loans payable
| t t ti
nvestment corporation ~ 4000000 1,500,000 - 5000000 16,500,000
bonds
Long-term loans payable - 20,870,000 25,218,000 24,460,000 15,310,000 88,600,000
Total 24,460,000 24,870,000 26,718,000 24,460,000 20,310,000 | 105,100,000

1 1 Securities

As of January 31,2018
Not applicable.

As of July 31,2018
Not applicable.
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1 2 Derivative Transactions

(1) Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is not applied

As of January 31,2018
Not applicable.

As of July 31,2018
Not applicable.

(2) Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is applied

The contract amounts or equivalent notional principal amounts defined in the contract by the method of hedge

accounting as of January 31,2018 and July 31, 2018 are as follows:

As of January 31,2018

(Thousands of yen)
Contract amount (*1)
Method of hedge Type of derivative Main hedged Contract Fair value
accounting transaction item amount due (*2)
after one year
Special accounting Interest rate swaps
treatment for interest (fixed rate payment, Long ;e;rglleoans 120,198,000 98,858,000 v ’799’?1 8;
rate swaps floating rate receipt) pay 3
As of July 31,2018
(Thousands of yen)
Contract amount (*1)
Method of hedge Type of derivative Main hedged Contract Fair value
accounting transaction item amount due (*2)
after one year
Special accounting Interest rate swaps
treatment for interest (fixed rate payment, Long :e;rgll-oans 106,358,000 87,158,000 (1,51 7’?36;
rate swaps floating rate receipt) pay 3
Interest rate swaps Long-term loans
Basic accounting method (fixed rate payment, g avable 2,000,000 2,000,000 (3,423)
floating rate receipt) pay

*1. The contract amount is based on the notional principal.

*2. Fair value is based on the estimation made by the interest rate swap counterparty using the prevailing interest rate.

*3. Special accounting treatment is applied to the interest rate swaps in accordance with the “Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments” (issued by the Accounting Standards Board
of Japan (ASBJ) on March 10, 2008; ASBJ Statement No. 10) and therefore, interest rate swaps are not stated at fair value in the balance sheets.

/_\ /F UAw!vance Residence Investment Corporation
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1 3 Profits or Losses from Investments Accounted for Using the Equity Method

For the six months ended January 31, 2018
Not applicable as ADR does not have any affiliated companies.

For the six months ended July 31,2018
Not applicable as ADR does not have any affiliated companies.

1 4 Transactions with Related Parties

(1) Parent company and major corporate unitholders
As of and for the six months ended January 31,2018
Not applicable.

As of and for the six months ended July 31, 2018
Not applicable.

(2) Affiliated companies
As of and for the six months ended January 31,2018
Not applicable.
As of and for the six months ended July 31, 2018
Not applicable.

(3) Fellow subsidiaries
As of and for the six months ended January 31,2018
Not applicable.
As of and for the six months ended July 31, 2018
Not applicable.

(4) Directors and major individual unitholders
As of and for the six months ended January 31, 2018

Capital stock
Name of oramount Business Percentage |Relationships Transaction Period-end
Type of . invested . : . . amount | Account balance
related | Location | . . descriptionor | of voting | with related Nature of transactions
related party art in capital occupation | rights held arties (Thousands | name | (Thousands
party (Thousands P g P of yen) of yen)
of yen)

Management| 454,182 ;\a‘;gsl’;‘f 490,516

% *
fee1 (*2) other (*3)

Accounts
Directors Executive Payment | Management| 371,333 payable - 401,040
and their Kenii Director of Asset of asset fee2 (*2) other (*3)
immediate Kous;ka - - ADR and the - management | management

family President of company | feesto ADIM Management 349,666 Q;;;)tt)llr;ts 377,640

members ADIM * * - *
(*1) fee3 *2) " (*3)
Acquisition 7,333 Accounts 7,333

(*3)| payable -
fee (*3)
(*4)| other




As of and for the six months ended July 31, 2018
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Capital stock
Name of oramount Business Percentage | Relationships Transaction Period-end
Type of . invested L . . . amount | Account balance
related | Location | . descriptionor | of voting | with related Nature of transactions
related party art in capital occupation | rights held Arties (Thousands | name | (Thousands
party (Thousands P g P of yen) of yen)
of yen)
Management 444,736 Accounts 480,315
foe 1 (*2) payable - *3)
other
Accounts
Management 375,124 405,134
! . «\ payable - »
Directors Executive Payment fee2 (*2) other (*3)
and their Kenii Director of Asset of asset
lmmec'ilate Kousaka - - ADR.and the - management| management Management 361,930 Accounts 390,885
family President of company | fees to ADIM fee 3 (*2) payable - (*3)
members ADIM (*1) other
12,865
Transfer fee (*2) - -
Acquisition 73’230
fee ( 3) - -
(*4)

Terms and conditions of transactions and policy on determining the terms and conditions
*1. ADR Executive Director Kenji Kousaka executed the transactions acting as a representative of a third party (ADIM) and respective amounts of remuneration in the form of asset

management fees are determined in accordance with the terms set forth in ADR’s Articles of Incorporation.
*2. The transaction amount does not include consumption taxes.
*3. The transaction amount includes consumption taxes.
*4. The transaction amount is included in the acquisition cost of the relevant real estate properties.

15 Tax Effect Accounting

(1) The breakdown of deferred tax assets and liabilities by major item are as follows:

(Thousands of yen)
As of January 31,2018 As of July 31,2018
Deferred tax assets
Excess provision of allowance for doubtful accounts 2,298 2,282
Valuation difference on assets acquired through merger 10,070,239 9,832,217
Tax loss carryforwards 1,371,552 1,371,552
Other 109,516 120,395
Subtotal 11,553,606 11,326,447
Less valuation allowance (11,553,606) (11,326,447)

Total deferred tax assets

Net deferred tax asset
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(2) Reconciliation between the statutory tax rates and the effective tax rates after the application of tax effect accounting

(Unit: %)
As of January 31,2018 As of July 31,2018

Statutory tax rate 31.74 31.74
(Adjustments)

Increase (decrease) in valuation allowance (1.09) (3.20)
Deductible dividends (30.66) (28.52)
Other 0.01 0.00
Effective tax rate after the application of tax effect accounting 0.01 0.01

1 6 Retirement Benefits

As of and for the six months ended January 31,2018
Not applicable because ADR does not have retirement benefit plans.

As of and for the six months ended July 31, 2018
Not applicable because ADR does not have retirement benefit plans.

17 Asset Retirement Obligations

As of and for the six months ended January 31, 2018
Not applicable.

As of and for the six months ended July 31, 2018
Not applicable.
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18 Segment Information

(1) Segment information
Disclosure is omitted because ADR’s business comprises a single reportable segment engaged in the property leasing
business.

(2) Related information
As of and for the six months ended January 31,2018
1) Information about products and services
Disclosure is omitted because operating revenues attributable to external customers for products and services of the
single segment exceed 90% of the total operating revenue reported in the statements of income.
2) Information about geographic areas
A. Operating revenues
Disclosure is omitted because operating revenues attributable to external customers in Japan exceed 90% of the
total operating revenue reported in the statements of income.
B. Property, plant and equipment
Disclosure is omitted because property, plant and equipment located in Japan exceeds 90% of the total property,
plant and equipment reported in the balance sheets.
3) Information about major customers
Disclosure is omitted because operating revenues attributable to a single external customer account for less than 10%
of the total operating revenue reported in the statements of income.

As of and for the six months ended July 31,2018
1) Information about products and services
Disclosure is omitted because operating revenues attributable to external customers for products and services of the
single segment exceed 90% of the total operating revenue reported in the statements of income.
2) Information about geographic areas
A. Operating revenues
Disclosure is omitted because operating revenues attributable to external customers in Japan exceed 90% of the
total operating revenue reported in the statements of income.
B. Property, plant and equipment
Disclosure is omitted because property, plant and equipment located in Japan exceeds 90% of the total property,
plant and equipment reported in the balance sheets.
3) Information about major customers
Disclosure is omitted because operating revenues attributable to a single external customer account for less than 10%
of the total operating revenue reported in the statements of income.
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19 value of Rental Properties

ADR owns rental residential properties in Tokyo and other prefectures. The following are the book value, changes during the

period, and fair value of these properties:
(Thousands of yen)

As of January 31,2018 As of July 31,2018

Book value

Balance at the beginning of 424712 182 423 470 815
(*1) period v S

Changes during the period

(*2) (1,241,366) 2,792,788

Balance at the end of period 423,470,815 426,263,604
Fair value at the end of period (*3) 533,958,000 548,888,000

*1. The book value is the cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation.

*2. Of the changes in the value of rental properties during the period, the main element of increase in the previous period was the acquisition of one real estate property (745,170 thousand
yen), while the main decreases came from the posting of depreciation expenses. Of the changes in the value of rental properties during the fiscal period ended July 31, 2018, the
increase is mainly attributable to the acquisition of two real estate properties (5,770,812 thousand yen) and the acquisition of real estate beneficiary interests in trust for two properties
(1,311,848 thousand yen), and the decrease is mainly a result of the sales of two real estate properties (2,327,824 thousand yen) and posting depreciation.

*3. The fair value at the end of the current period is the appraisal or assessment value provided by an external real estate appraiser. The fair values at the end of the previous fiscal year
with respect to RESIDIA Minami-Aoyama and Windsor House Hiroo are the disposition prices.

Please refer to the Note 5 “Statements of Income” for details on operating income from rental property.

20 Per Unit Information

(Yen)

As of and for the six months ended
January 31,2018

As of and for the six months ended
July 31,2018

Net assets per unit

163,388

163,351

Net income per unit

5,035

5,250

*1. Netincome per unit is computed by dividing net income by the day-weighted average number of units issued and outstanding for the period. Diluted net income per unit is not disclosed

as there are no diluted investment units.

*2. The basis for the computation of net income per unit is as follows:

For the six months ended For the six months ended
January 31,2018 July 31,2018

Net income (thousands of yen) 6,798,144 7,087,597
Amount not attributable to common B a
unitholders (thousands of yen)

Net income attributable to common unit 6,798,144 7,087,597
(thousands of yen)

,(Al:/r:rt'z)ge number of units during the period 1,350,000 1,350,000

N
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21 Significant Subsequent Event

For the six months ended July 31,2018

Issuance of investment corporation bonds

Based on the “General Resolution on ADR Bond Issuance” resolved by the Board of Directors meeting held on July 26, 2018,
ADR issued investment corporation bonds on October 19, 2018 under the following terms and conditions.

ADR Unsecured Bond #30 (with Pari Passu clause among specified investment corporation bonds)

Total amount of bonds: 2,000 million yen

Issue price: 100 yen par value of 100 yen for each bond

Coupon rate: 0.704%

Collateral and guarantee: ~ Unsecured, unguaranteed

Redemption date: ADR will redeem the entire amount on October 19, 2028. The bonds may be purchased and

canceled at any time on and after the date following the issuance date, unless otherwise
stipulated by the depository.

Interest payment dates: April 19 and October 19 of every year

Intended use of proceeds: Repayment of short-term loans payable

22 Schedule of Securities

Not applicable.

2 3 Table of Summary of Contract Amounts and Fair Values of Derivative Transactions and
Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts

(Thousands of yen)
Contract amount (*1)

Category Type Contract amount due | Fair value (*2 and *3)
after one year

Transactions other than Interest rate swaps
. (fixed rate payment, 108,358,000 89,158,000 (1,521,390)

market transactions . .
floating rate receipt)

Total 108,358,000 89,158,000 (1,521,3%90)

. The contract amount is based on the notional principal.
*2. The fair value is based on the estimation made by the interest rate swap counterparty using the prevailing interest rate.
*3. For the fair value amount of negative 1,517,966 yen, special accounting treatment is applied to the interest rate swaps in accordance with the “Accounting Standard for Financial

Instruments” (issued by the Accounting Standards Board of Japan (ASBJ) on March 10, 2008; ASBJ Statement No. 10) and therefore, interest rate swaps are not stated at fair value in
the balance sheets.

*1
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24 Summary of Real Estate

As of and for the six months ended July 31, 2018
(Thousands of yen)

Balance Accumulated depreciation
St the Increase | Decrease | Balance at or ————— Bookvalue
- during the | during the | the end of Depreciation | at the end of | Notes
beginning of erod erod eriod | ccumulated | g0 the eriod
period p p p amortization period P
Buildings 75,173,544 | 1,813,158 1,006,303 | 75,980,399 @ 12,997,222 844,039 | 62,983,176 *1
Structures 23,585 604 794 23,395 7,132 764 16,263 -
Machinery and equipment 67,662 14,698 - 82,361 19,859 3,349 62,502 -

g Tools, furniture and fixtures 268,535 32,988 11,614 289,909 141,887 15,871 148,021 -

.g_ Land 70,754,369 | 4,083,265 | 434,390 | 74,403,244 - — | 74,403,244 | *1%2

3

g | Construction in progress 47,779 44,670 47,779 44, 670 - - 44,670 -

g

% Buildings in trust 153,340,662 992,695 285 | 154,333,071 | 25,491,760 1,736,459 | 128,841,311 *1

E Structures in trust 190,982 2,608 - 193,591 103,080 4,607 90,510 -

o

# | Machinery and equipment 175,646 6,475 - 182,121 105,796 6,534 76325 | -

@ |intrust

Q.

e .

& Jools furnitureandfixtures | 783450 | 48,683 - 832133 518517 36240 | 313615 | -
Land in trust 156,457,632 844,872 — 157,302,505 — — 157,302,505 *1
Construction in progress 40,254 6503 40,254 6,503 - - 6503 | -
in trust ! ! ! ! !

Subtotal 457,324,106 | 7,891,224 | 1,541,423 | 463,673,908 | 39,385,257 2,647,866 | 424,288,650
% ., | Leasehold rights 1,071,902 - 11,071,902 - - - - *2
%D % Leasehold rights in trust 2,356,072 - - 2,356,072 381,118 34,437 1,974,953 -
E° Other 19,506 - - 19,506 19,471 19 34 -

Subtotal 3,447,482 - 11,071,902 2,375,579 400,590 34,456 1,974,988

Total 460,771,588 | 7,891,224 | 2,613,325 | 466,049,487 | 39,785,847 2,682,323 | 426,263,639

*1. The increase in property, plant and equipment for the six months ended July 31, 2018, primarily represents the acquisition of the properties listed below.
RESIDIA Kamata V
RESIDIA Kamata IV
RESIDIA Funabashi IV
RESIDIA Hijiyama-Koen

*2. The decrease in property, plant and equipment and intangible assets for the six months ended July 31, 2018, primarily represents the sale of the properties listed below.
RESIDIA Minami-Aoyama
Windsor House Hiroo

25 schedule of Other Specified Assets

Not applicable




26 schedule of Investment Corporation Bonds

As of and for the six months ended July 31, 2018

*1

(Thousands of yen)
Balance Decrease | Balance at
Series (*1) Issue date at.th.e during the | the end of Intereost Redemption Use | Collateral
beginning ; . rate (%) date
- period period
of period
ADR Bond #14 (Unsecured) | P> 2,000,000 _ | 2000000 1680 %P % | (x3) | Unsecured
2011 2018
ADR Bond #8 (Unsecured) | P> 4000,000 ~ 4000000 1230 %P1 (x3)  Unsecured
2012 2019
ADR Bond #19 (Unsecured) | “P™25 | 3,000,000 ~ 3000000 1320 APt25% | (43) | Unsecured
2013 2023
ADR Bond #20 (Unsecured) | V% | 2 000,000 ~ 2000000 1410 N | (x3) unsecured
2013 2025
Apr. 28, Apr. 26,
ADR Bond #21 (Unsecured) 2,500,000 - 2,500,000 | 1.040 (*2) | Unsecured
2014 2024
ADR Bond #22 (Unsecured) | “P"23 | 2000,000 ~ 2000000 0726 AP"23% | (x3) unsecured
2015 2025
ADR Bond #23 (Unsecured) Ozc;}?’ 1,500,000 ~ | 1,500,000  0.326 OZC;';’ (*2) | Unsecured
Oct. 21, Oct. 21,
ADR Bond #24 (Unsecured) 2015 1,500,000 — | 1,500,000 | 0.846 2025 (*2) | Unsecured
ADR Bond #25 (Unsecured) | 747 =" 3,000,000 ~ 3,000,000 0.900 J“;;';O' (*2) | Unsecured
ADR Bond #26 (Unsecured) | <27 | 000,000 ~ 2000000 0180 AY817 | (x3)  unsecured
2017 2022
Jul. 18, Jul. 16,
ADR Bond #27 (Unsecured) 3,000,000 — | 3,000,000 | 0.500 (*2) | Unsecured
2017 2027
ADR Bond #28 (Unsecured) | N°V-2% | 1000,000 ~ 1,000,000 05663 NOV:-2% | (%3) Unsecured
2017 2027
ADR Bond #29 (Unsecured) | APT 24 - ~ 1,500,000  0.690 Afg'a | (*2) | Unsecured
Total - 27,500,000 ~ 129,000,000 - - - -

The funds are used for repayments of existing loans.
The funds are used for redemption of existing investment corporation bonds.
Redemption schedules of investment corporation bonds after the balance sheet date for the next five years are as follows:

Due in one year or

less

. The bonds have a pari passu clause among specified investment corporation bonds.
*2.
*3.
*4.

(Thousands of yen)

Due after three

Due after one year Due after two years
through two years |through three years

years
through four years

Due after four years
through five years

Investment
corporation bond

2,000,000

4,000,000

1,500,000

5,000,000

/_\ /F ;annce Residence Investment Corporation
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27 Schedule of Loans

As of and for the six months ended July 31, 2018

(Thousands of yen)

Classification Balar}celat the In(:rease DeFrease Balance at | Interest Repayment
beginning of during the during the the end of rate date Use Notes
Lenders period period period period (*1)
@ MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) - 750,000 750,000 -
lg : Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited - 750,000 750,000 - - APRET | (a3) Unsecured
8 g Mizuho Bank, Ltd. - 500,000 500,000 - Unguaranteed
_E Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 | 0.15% JLZJ(I)'1391' (*s)
Total - 3,000,000 2,000,000 1,000,000
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited 890,000 - 890,000 - - Juzrgég, (*s5)
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 1,000,000 - ~ 1,000,000 ”Efz/) P28 | (+3)
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 3,200,000 - - 3,200,000
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited 1,300,000 - ~ 1300000 ?Z:/; N‘;‘(; §°' (*s)
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 1,400,000 - 1,400,000 -
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited 500,000 - 500,000 -
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation 650,000 - 650,000 - ~ Jul. 31, (*5)
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 500,000 - 500,000 - 2018
Development Bank of Japan Inc. 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 -
Shinsei Bank, Limited 1,500,000 - 1,500,000 -
3| MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 500,000 - 500,000 -
g Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited 500,000 - 500,000 - - J‘Z’(')'fg” (*6)
§ | Shinsei Bank, Limited 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 -
g MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 2,850,000 ~ | 2,850,000 - - Fi'f)'és’ (*3)
80 Unsecured
& | MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 1,500,000 - 1,500,000 - Unguaranteed
E Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited 2,100,000 - 2,100,000 - - AS&?’ (*s)
o
B Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation 800,000 - 800,000 -
é‘ MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) - 1,200,000 - 1,200,000
g Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited - 800,000 - 800,000 12(5;/; Juzno.1298, (*s)
| Aozora Bank, Ltd. - 700,000 - 700,000
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) - 4,502,000 - 4,502,000
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited - 3,595,000 - 3,595,000 12(?;/; J|;I0.1295, (*s)
Aozora Bank, Ltd. - 903,000 - 903,000
The Bank of Fukuoka, Ltd. 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 - | P28 g
The Nishi-Nippon City Bank, Ltd. 500,000 - - 500,000 | 077% Sep. 28, *3)
The 77 Bank, Ltd. 500,000 - - 500000~ (*2) | 2018
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 1,500,000 ~ | 1,500,000 - - R (a3)
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation 2,260,000 - - 2,260,000 | 0.20% 322(\)/;8 (*s)
'é(())l'(’ilo_tr\c/il.arine & Nichido Fire Insurance 1,000,000 _ 1,000,000 _ _ Mzagqgu (*s5)
Total 28,950,000 | 11,700,000 | 19,190,000 = 21,460,000

N



Long-term loans payable
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Classification Balance at the Increase Decrease Balance at | Interest Repayment
beginning of during the during the the end of rate pdayte Use Notes
Lenders period period period period (*1)
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 1,200,000 - 1,200,000 -
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited 800,000 - 800,000 - - Juzr:).1298, (*s5)
Aozora Bank, Ltd. 700,000 700,000 -
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 450,000 - - 450,000 | 1.16% Sez‘(’)go' (*6)
. o . o Sep. 30,
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited 450,000 - - 450,000 | 1.16% 2019 (*6)
1.03% | Nov.29, |
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*¥10) 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 (*2) 2019 (*6)
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000 | 095% | Nov. 29, (*6)
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 1,200,000 - - 1200000 |  (*2) | 2019
o Nov. 29,
Development Bank of Japan Inc. 2,200,000 - - 2,200,000 | 1.23% 5090 (*s5)
o Nov. 29,
Development Bank of Japan Inc. 2,200,000 - - 2,200,000 | 1.40% 501 (*s)
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 4,502,000 - 4,502,000 -
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited 3,595,000 - 3,595,000 - - 1221295; (*s5)
Aozora Bank, Ltd. 903,000 - 903,000 -
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 1,200,000 - ~ 1200000 081% | M2 (a3)
; - e o Mar. 24,
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000 | 0.82% 5090 (*3)
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 1,300,000 - - 1,300,000 0.81% M:(:'Zf)“’ (*s)
. - L Mar. 24,
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited 1,300,000 - - 1,300,000 | 0.82% 5090 (*s5)
Mar. 24,
Development Bank of Japan Inc. 1,150,000 - - 1,150,000 | 1.08% (*4) | Unsecured
2021 Unguaranteed
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited 920,000 - - 920,000
0.88% | Mar. 24,
Aozora Bank, Ltd. 1,830,000 - - 1,830,000 (*2) 2090 (*s)
Resona Bank, Limited 1,370,000 - - 1,370,000
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
O,
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000 12(53 0222219' (*s)
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
. 1.63% Dec. 22,
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 2,160,000 - - 2,160,000 (*2; 3001 (*5)
Aozora Bank, Ltd. 1,379,000 - - 1,379,000 | 154% | Jun. 25, (*5)
Resona Bank, Limited 919,000 - - 919,000 | (*2) | 2021
Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd. 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 | 4 07% | Sep. 30, *3)
The Norinchukin Bank 1,000,000 - - 1000000 ~ (¥2) | 2020
10,
The Nishi-Nippon City Bank, Ltd. 500,000 - 500,000 O'if 2/) Sez‘;;"’ (*3)
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited 2,600,000 - 2,600,000 ng/) N;’Z'Z;S’ (*5)
(o)
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation 3,550,000 - 3,550,000 ! 3(’12/; N;);/-Z;S; (*s)
1.16% | Nov. 26,
Aozora Bank, Ltd. 1,800,000 - 1,800,000 (*2) 2021 (*3)
10,
Shinsei Bank, Limited 1,000,000 - 1000000 | 3(§ 2/) 7 (43)
Shinsei Bank, Limited 700,000 - 700,000 1'1(22/‘; RO
. 0.93% Jun. 18,
The Yamaguchi Bank, Ltd. 500,000 - 500,000 (*23 5020 (*3)
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Long-term loans payable

Classification Balance at the Increase Decrease Balance at | Interest Repayment
beginning of during the during the the end of rate pda}llte Use Notes
Lenders period period period period (*1)
O
The Yamaguchi Bank, Ltd. 500,000 - - 500,000 O'?E 2/) Dec. ’98’ (*3)
[o)
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 500,000 - - 500,000 1'?22/; F‘;Z'z 154’ (*3)
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 500,000 - - 500,000 | 144%  Feb. 16, *s)
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited 500,000 - - 500000~ (*2) 2024
O
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 455,000 - - 455,000 1'2(32/‘; Fig'zf’ (*s)
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited 455,000 - - 455,000
R o . R 1.28% Feb. 16, "
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation 1,120,000 - - 1,120,000 (*2) 2023 (*s5)
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 1,630,000 - - 1,630,000
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited 2,100,000 - - 2,100,000 | 1.08% | Feb.16, (*5)
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 2,000,000 - - 2000000 | (2| 2022
Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd. 500,000 - - 500,000
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 2,900,000 - - 2,900,000
10,
Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd. 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 O?ZS Fe;‘))';f’ (*s)
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 270,000 - - 270,000
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 2,900,000 - - 2,900,000 | 074% | Feb. 14, *s)
Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd. 2,350,000 - - 2,350,000 (*2) 2020
Aozora Bank, Ltd. 900,000 - - 900,000 | 058% | Jan. 29, *3)
The Nishi-Nippon City Bank, Ltd. 400,000 - - 400,000 (*2) 2021
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 707,000 - - 707,000
0,
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited 393,000 - - 393,000 O?ES J:i;zzzg’ (*3)
The Nishi-Nippon City Bank, Ltd. 400,000 - - 400,000
Unsecured
lo)
Development Bank of Japan Inc. 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 szf; SE;[(D).2239, (*s5) |Unguaranteed
0Oy
Development Bank of Japan Inc. 1,850,000 - - 1,850,000 ! 1(23 SeZZ'zzo’ (*s5)
Oy
Aozora Bank, Ltd. 1,000,000 - ~ | 1,000,000 O‘%f 2/) O3 | (xs)
Oy
Aozora Bank, Ltd. 700,000 - - 700,000 0'7((:3 A8 (xs)
Aozora Bank, Ltd. 700,000 - - 700,000 Off 2/) oct. ;1' *s)
Resona Bank, Limited 500,000 - - 500,000 | 057% | Jan. 29, (*5)
The Bank of Fukuoka, Ltd. 500,000 - - 500000 ~ (*2) | 2021
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 600,000 - - 600,000
Oy
Resona Bank, Limited 500,000 - - 500,000 O'(z;f’ 2/) N30 us)
The Bank of Fukuoka, Ltd. 500,000 - - 500,000
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
0,
Aozora Bank, Ltd. 700,000 - - 700,000 0'%2 2/) e
Resona Bank, Limited 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
(o)
Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd. 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000 ! %i_f)) Mzacl)‘.2159, (*3)
The Yamaguchi Bank, Ltd. 500,000 - - 500,000 1'(283 A (3)
O,
Nippon Life Insurance Company 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 1(223 AE;'Z?’ (*3)
Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd. 1,400,000 - ~ | 1,400,000 O'%f 2/) Af(;'zz' *3)
Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd. 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000 | (75% Apr. 14, .
. A (*2) 502 (*3)
The Norinchukin Bank 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 3

&



Long-term loans payable

/_\ /F ;;Awlvance Residence Investment Corporation

Classification Balance at the Increase Decrease Balance at Interest Repayment
beginning of during the during the the end of rate pd yte Use Notes
Lenders period period period period (*1) @
O
The Yamaguchi Bank, Ltd. 500,000 - - 500,000 0‘7(3 Z/) Apr. RIC)
10,
Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd. 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000 069% | APr 14 | gy
(*2) 2022
Kiraboshi Bank, Ltd. (*11) 500,000 - - 500,000
The Iyo Bank, Ltd. 700,000 - - 700,000 O“Ef 2/) AT
The 77 Bank, Ltd. 500,000 - - 500,000
10
The Norinchukin Bank 1,000,000 - ~ | 1,000,000 0-%2 2/) AR (x3)
The Gunma Bank, Ltd. 1,000,000 - ~ 1000000 063% | May27, |
(*2) 2022
0Oy
Development Bank of Japan Inc. 2,300,000 - - 2,300,000 1(2113 Jl;r;'zzss’ (*s)
Resona Bank, Limited 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 | 073% | Aug. 3, )
The Nishi-Nippon City Bank, Ltd 800,000 - - 800,000 | (*2) | 2023
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 400,000 - - 400,000 | 0.92% A‘f)'z ;9' (*3)
0Oy
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited 400,000 - - 400,000 O%Eg Al;(g)'zég’ (*3)
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 1,000,000 - ~ | 1,000,000 O'Ezi‘ 2/) pec. 158’ *s)
The Norinchukin Bank 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 | 041%  Dec.18, (*5)
The Bank of Fukuoka, Ltd. 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 | (*2) | 2023
o Feb. 28,
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 990,000 - - 990,000 = 0.55% (*s)
2026
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited 990,000 - - 990,000 Jan. 31
0.66% 2V | (*5)
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 1,080,000 - - 1,080,000 2027
Jan. 31 Unsecured
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 | 0.57% o0 Z » | (*s5) Unguaranteed
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited 1,000,000 - ~ 1000000 O77% | Mar.24, |
(*2) 2028
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 | 0.54% M;g'zz“’ (*3)
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 900,000 - - 900,000 Jan. 31
0.63% 3 (#3)
Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd. 750,000 - - 750,000 2027
Resona Bank, Limited 900,000 - - 900,000 0.52% @ A3V | (g
2026
MUFG B * o Jan. 31, .
ank, Ltd. (*10) 1,150,000 - - 1,150,000 | 045% | “S03Y 1 (+3)
O,
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited 500,000 - - 500,000 07(53 M;g'2§4’ (*3)
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 500,000 - - 500,000 | 0.51% M:‘g'zé“’ (*3)
. o Jan. 31,
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 400,000 - - 400,000 0.63% (*3)
2027
. o Jul. 29, «
The Yamaguchi Bank, Ltd. 500,000 - - 500,000 | 0.36% 2026 (*s5)
The Bank of Fukuoka, Ltd. 1,000,000 1,000,000 | 0.36% J;"o';g’ (*3)
The Bank of Fukuoka, Ltd. 1,000,000 1,000,000 | 026% | 429 | (x5
2025
o Jul. 29, %
The lyo Bank, Ltd. 300,000 300,000 | 0.20% 2024 (*s)
The Chugoku Bank, Ltd. 500,000 - 500,000 0.20% U290 | (x5)
2024
o Jul. 29,
Bank of Kyoto, Ltd. 500,000 - 500,000 0.20% (*s)
2024




II1. Notes to Financial Statements

Long-term loans payable

Classification Balance at the Increase Decrease Balanceat | Interest Repayment
beginning of during the during the the end of rate pda}llte Use Notes
Lenders period period period period (*1)
The Norinchukin Bank 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000  0.45% N%'Z ;8' (*5)
The Norinchukin Bank 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 | 0.38% N‘Z’g'sz’ (*3)
. . o Nov. 29,
Taiyo Life Insurance Company 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 | 0.24% 2024 (*s)
— . o, Nov. 30,
Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Co., Ltd. 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 | 0.32% 2023 (*s5)
o Jan. 29,
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 1,250,000 - - 1,250,000 | 0.41% 2027 (*s5)
o Jan. 29,
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 | 0.58% 2027 (*s)
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 | 0.63% Jazr:).2279, (*s)
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited 1,250,000 - 1,250,000 Jan. 29
0.61% 7 (%)
Resona Bank, Limited 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 2027
. o Jan. 30, %
Resona Bank, Limited 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 | 0.50% 096 (*s5)
o Feb. 25,
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000 | 0.43% 2026 (*6)
. o . o Apr. 25,
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 | 0.67% 5098 (*6)
o Apr. 23,
Development Bank of Japan Inc. 1,400,000 - - 1,400,000 | 0.56% 2027 (*6)
o Feb. 26,
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 2,500,000 - - 2500000 | 0.52% | TS2ZY | (*s)
* 9 Aug. 31, %
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 | 0.47% 2096 (*s5)
: T _ Unsecured
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.60% Apr. 30, *5) Unguaranteed
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 2027
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 1,700,000 - - 1,700,000 | 0.54% 052'2360' (*s)
o May 31,
Development Bank of Japan Inc. 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 | 0.57% 2027 *7)
. - . . o Dec. 25, "
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation 2,700,000 - - 2,700,000 | 0.25% 2090 (*s5)
. - . . o Feb. 26,
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation 2,800,000 - - 2,800,000 | 0.25% 2091 (*s)
The Nishi-Nippon City Bank, Ltd. 500,000 - - 500,000
The Bank of Fukuoka, Ltd. 500,000 - - 500,000
The Iyo Bank, Ltd. 500,000 - - 500,000 | 0.55% A‘;(g)g" (*6)
Bank of Kyoto, Ltd. 500,000 - - 500,000
Shinkin Central Bank 500,000 - - 500,000
The Nishi-Nippon City Bank, Ltd. 500,000 - - 500,000
The Bank of Fukuoka, Ltd. 500,000 - - 500,000
The Iyo Bank, Ltd. 500,000 500,000 | 0.42% F‘;";'Z 27’ (*6)
The Chugoku Bank, Ltd. 500,000 500,000
Shinkin Central Bank 500,000 500,000
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) 500,000 500,000 | 0.51% A;g;” (*6)
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited 500,000 500,000 Aug. 31
0.55% 27 1 (*6)
Japan Post Insurance Co., Ltd. 1,000,000 1,000,000 2027
Lo 9 Sep. 30,
Taiyo Life Insurance Company 1,500,000 1,500,000 | 0.42% 2025 (*s)

\&/



Classification Balance at the Increase Decrease Balanceat | Interest Repayment
beginning of during the during the the end of rate pd yte Use Notes
Lenders period period period period (*1) a
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) | 2,850,000 - 2,850,000 | 0.54% S‘ZF(’J'Z37°' (*3)
o Feb. 28,
The Bank of Fukuoka, Ltd. - 500,000 - 500,000 | 0.38% 2025 (*s5)
o Feb. 29,
The Bank of Fukuoka, Ltd. - 500,000 - 500,000 | 0.63% 2098 (*s)
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) - 500,000 - 500,000 | 0.56% Mzaogg’ (*3)
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited - 500,000 - 500,000
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
061% | M (s3)
The Yamaguchi Bank, Ltd. - 500,000 - 500,000 202
Shinkin Central Bank - 500,000 - 500,000
. o Apr. 13,
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000 | 0.60% 2098 (*s)
" o Mar. 31, %
o | MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000 | 0.50% 2098 (*s)
Qo
S . - L o Apr. 30,
® | Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited - 2,100,000 - 2,100,000 | 0.38% 2035 (*s)
§ Apr. 30 Unsecured
= Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation - 800,000 - 800,000 | 0.27% 5031 ) Unguaranteed
9] ; ) R
5o | Tokio Marine & Nichido Fire Insurance B 1,000,000 B 1,000,000 | 0.20% Nov. 30, (*s)
5 Co., Ltd. 2020
—
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited - 890,000 - 890,000 | 0.70% Ju;;';:' (*s5)
o, Mar. 31,
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (*10) - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 | 0.49% 2098 (*s)
Development Bank of Japan Inc. - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 Jul. 31
0.66% § 8, (*s5)
The Nishi-Nippon City Bank, Ltd. - 900,000 - 900,000 202
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. - 500,000 - 500,000 | 0.47% J;]0'2361 7 (*s5)
— o 0.47% | Jul. 31, «
Shinsei Bank, Limited - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 *2) 5026 (*5)
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation - 650,000 - 650,000 0.37% Ji’;'z 351' (*s)
Shinsei Bank, Limited ~ | 1,000,000 ~ 1000000 036% | Jan-3h
(*2) 2025
. . - o Jan. 31,
Shinsei Bank, Limited - 500,000 - 500,000 | 0.20% 2099 (*5)
Total 164,968,000 | 21,190,000 | 11,700,000 | 174,458,000

*1. “Interest rate” represents the borrowing interest rate (the weighted average of the balance at the end of the fiscal period) for each loan agreement, rounded to the second decimal

place.

*2. For loans where an interest rate swap transaction is used to manage exposures to fluctuations in interest rate, the interest rate presented in the above table is fixed, reflecting the

effects of interest rate swap transactions.
*3. The funds are used for acquisition of specified assets.
*4. The funds are used for acquisition of specified assets and repayment of the existing loans.
*5. The funds are used for repayment of the existing loans.
*6. The funds are used for redemption of the existing investment corporation bonds.
*7. The funds are used for repayment of the existing loans and redemption of the existing investment corporation bonds.
*8. The balances are rounded down to the nearest one thousand yen. Accordingly, the “Total” amounts are not necessarily equal to the sum of individual amounts.
*9. Total amount of scheduled yearly repayments for the long-term loans for five years after the balance sheet date is as follows:

/_\ /F U/%lvance Residence Investment Corporation

(Thousands of yen)
Due in one year or Due after one year | Due after two years | Due after three years | Due after four years
less through two years | through three years | through four years through five years
Long:term loans 21,460,000 20,870,000 25,218,000 24,460,000 15,310,000

payable

*10. Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation concluded a corporate absorption-type split agreement whereby its domestic corporate loan-related business is to be succeeded to MUFG Bank,

Ltd. Accordingly, the title, rights and obligations of Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation are to be succeeded to MUFG Bank, Ltd. as of April 16, 2018.
*11. The Tokyo Tomin Bank Co., Ltd. changed its trade name to Kiraboshi Bank, Ltd. on the occasion of the merger with the Yachiyo Bank, Ltd. and ShinGinko Tokyo, Inc. on May 1, 2018.
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